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TEMBHHE

Five Years’ Financial Summary

BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

—B-N\F —FT—tF TR “F-RF ZEFHEF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
TR THET THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WA Revenue 68,350 1,682,786 45,806 52,473 49,763

KRATEHEAEEETFN  Profit attributable to the

owners of the Company 606,619 440,660 315,348 241,028 395,232
& 2 Dividends 115,908 90,435 66,233 63,313 45,721
BREFN (ET) Earnings per share (HK$) 1.10 0.86 0.64 0.51 0.87
BRES (BT Dividends per share (HK$) 0.20 0.17 0.13 0.13 0.10
BMKS X (F) Dividend cover (time) 5.50 5.06 4.92 3.92 8.70
BEMEE Assets and liabilities
ElE & E (Hfit(a) Fixed assets (Note (a)) 7,132,876 5,676,053  5582,149 4,075,988 4,494,223
HitnEmBEE Other non-current assets 182,030 145,437 39,515 9,663 7,921
mBEETE Net current assets 553,436 1,537,156 1,271,036 1,191,234 661,962
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (1,325,913)  (1,592,942)  (1,591,690) (186,790) (333,124)
BEFE Net assets 6,542,429 5,765,704  5301,010 5,090,095 4,830,982
SEEFE(GET)  Netassets per share (HKS) 11.48 10.85 10.58 10.62 10.38
/j/jﬁ:i\c : Note:

(@) BEIEEEBRERAEME WX  HBEKRFE (@) Fixed assets include investment properties and property, plant
e and equipment.
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BRRBFEFAGES

Notice of Annual General Meeting

BBEBEARAEZTNR_Z—/\F+—H NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General
“+—HBEH=TTF=RFBEEEETEE Meeting will be held at 35/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
B8 IRESISEEITHRREEF K® » Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, the 21 day of

CERRIE November 2018 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:
() EEBHE_FT-/\FXXA=1H JJ:QE 1. To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and
B2 8RR &%%;a HAZ BRI EF the Reports of the Directors and Auditor for the year

ended 30 June, 2018;

(D) ERAREAKRE 2. To declare final dividend;
(Z)EREERETHME 3. To elect Directors and fix their remuneration;
(M) EEZHgmErEETEMNS - & 4. To appoint Auditor and fix their remuneration; and

(F:) #%%\J%Iﬁ%f%&@/\]%‘ BTYIFESRE 5. As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass

BRER the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:
SR F R A. “THAT:

(i) ERXEGNEHZREIT - &2 (i) subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
mEEEHIERDNRIES by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
ERNBEBEBREITERARFZ all the powers of the Company to repurchase
— YIS - BEARR R shares in the capital of the Company be
avdlil &l and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

(i) EXFEOETPTHE Z X - (ii) the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
A B hn E§\$ RESTES addition to any other authorisation given to the
ZEMAEMEE  WKRE Directors of the Company and shall authorise
E=gRAEERARAEAR the Directors on behalf of the Company during
AIEITHARRRINLNESE 2 the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
BORTEZ BRI 2 BI%E repurchase its own shares at a price per share
BAREZRMH determined by the Directors at their discretion;

(i) N2 RIMRIE E X EG)Er 2 8t (iii) the aggregate nominal amount of the share
EERERE R 2 RNRA TG capital of the Company which the Company
HEARE K THEBEXRRA R is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
BRTERABELTAED 2 approval in paragraph (i) above shall not
T & exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal

amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue; and
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BRERBFXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(iv) E'fZlK?% .
[BRAEAR | FE R A RE R AR
ZBETY=F2RFHHIE
Z BARE ¢

BB AR FER ZIRPTEAT
ZR-RBRRBEREGHE
REF - RIRRRER R
BRIFFERZ RN & @B T @R
mERARBRZRER
Hi (i A M R AT )

(@)

RN BIARESAFI A
ZTERRAFRKE
EmsB i &

17
1R

%%E%%ﬁiﬁﬁiu
R R BUE S E R
ﬁiﬁﬁzm °

-~ B

() RELXFEERRIRR
BEFEBELQARRERN -
EPEAEGHEREESES
REBHEAAITERR T
— V) HE ) B B R R R R IE AX
7 I AT B 1T Uk A
hzEs HELE - m
ZERMD B EiEL KD 2
HEMER :

B.

(iv) for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(i)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution A above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;
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(ii)

(iii)

EXEGEZ B - AT IR
RABEZGHERS ZEME
it - WS RIEARARRES
SHEABHRELHETHA
B R AR T Ll 4 )
ZBREZ el &

PAVRZERME :

(BRI IR RERAA
ZBETI=FRFHEIE
2 HAfE -

(a) BB RFBEZIRMELT
ZHER-RBERBERSHE
REF - RIARRER R
FRIFEZAE @B E BR
BERNRBR I BEESE

H (T am B B M Rt )
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Z TERRBFXSHR
fEmz B K&

(0 BRREBRBFAE LA
R 5 B B B 2R

IRFER -

(ii)

(iii)

BRERBFXEEE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period; and
for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.”
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BRERBFXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

SN T X
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C.

“THAT:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
section 141 of the Companies Ordinance,
the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of
the Company to allot additional shares and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such power
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
in addition to any other authorisation given
to the Directors of the Company and shall
authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the
Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
subscription rights under any warrants, shall
not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the
aggregate amount of the issued share capital of
the Company; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to
conditions;
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BRERBFXEEE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open
for a period fixed by the Directors to holders
of shares on the register on a fixed record date
in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory

outside Hong Kong).”

By Order of the Board
Ho Sau Fun Connie

Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 24 September 2018

Registered Office:
Suite 4901, 49/F
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Annual Report 2018 ## | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£E) HRAA



BRRBFAEGES

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =4t (£8) ARAR

Notes:

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd., at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The purpose of Ordinary Resolution 5A of this Notice is to
seek approval from shareholders for a general mandate to

repurchase shares in the Company.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5B and 5C of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.

| Annual Report 2018 3§
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FREHES
Chairman’s Statement

| take pleasure to present to shareholders the report of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 30
June 2018.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated profit after income tax of our Group
for the year ended 30 June 2018 is HK$611,607,000
(2017: HK$449,353,000) representing an increase of
36.1% comparing to last year. Details are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents (2017: HK13.5 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 29
November 2018, which together with the interim dividend
of HK7.5 cents (2017: HK6.5 cents) per share, makes a
total distribution of HK22.5 cents (2017: HK20.0 cents) per
share this year, representing an increase of 12.5% when

comparing to last year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 27 December
2018.

SCRIP DIVIDEND

The Company proposes that a scrip dividend election will
be offered to shareholders with Hong Kong addresses.
Details of the scrip dividend scheme will be announced

later.
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EXPIRY OF WARRANTS

The Warrants (warrant code: 1590) (“the 2018 June
Warrants”) was expired on 21 June 2018. There were a total
number of 18,533,711 units of warrants exercised (being
94.19% of the total number of warrants issued) and a total

number of 18,533,711 shares were issued.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
Hong Kong Properties

The government has implemented a new set of initiatives
targeting the housing problem and helping local buyers to
get on the property ladder. However, due to shortage of
supply and low interest rates, the effectiveness is yet to be
known. The residential prices still continue to stand firm
in the first half of the year 2018 and will turn stable in the

second half of the year.

The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:-

1. One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

Residential project developed in two phases.

Phase 1 comprised of a block of 21-storey building
with 49 residential units (including 6 duplex units) and
39 car parking spaces. The gross floor area of the units
ranged from 1,200 square feet to 3,500 square feet.
14 units has been sold and majority of other units are

rented. The occupation permit has been issued.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%E) AR28 | Annual Report 2018 £
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FREHES
Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Properties (Continued)

1.

One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,
Tsuen Wan (Continued)

Phase 2 comprised of clubhouse, 31 car parking spaces
and five 3-storey garden villas. The gross floor area
of the villas ranged from approximately 1,800 square
feet to 3,000 square feet. The clubhouse provides
recreational facilities and swimming pool. Occupation
Permit application has been submitted to the Buildings
Department in early 2018. Unfortunately, due to the
liquidation of the previous contractor, some of the
structure and materials do not have certificates for
verification. The Buildings Department has identified
certain areas which required examination works to be
carried out. The rectification works require part of the
structure to be opened up for laboratory test. The new
contractor has proceeded with the works diligently.

Villa Cecil Phase I, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

The University of Chicago Booth School of Business
providing Executive MBA Program will be opened in
Victoria Road near our property, the leasing demand in
Victoria Road will be increased.

Residential development comprised of three blocks of
4-storey low density residential building provides 29
residential units. Ten units have been sold and the total
remaining marketable gross floor area is 51,483 square
feet. The gross floor area of the apartments ranged from
approximately 1,221 square feet to 3,099 square feet.

During the year, Unit 3A of Block 2 was sold. The sale
and purchase was completed in August 2018.

Unit A on the Ground Floor of Block 1 was selected
to sub-divide into two smaller units. The building
plans was approved by the Buildings Department and
the construction work will commence upon receipt of
consent. The occupancy rate of the remaining units
maintained at 80% and generated satisfactory income.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)

Hong Kong Properties (Continued)

3. Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of two blocks
of 4-storey building for rental purpose. The total
marketable gross floor area is 97,000 square feet. Block
1 provides 11 residential units and Block 2 provides

32 units. The gross floor area of the apartments ranged

from 760 square feet to 3,800 square feet.

During the year, the Group has issued tender inviting
potential purchasers to tender for the entire Vila Cecil
Phase Ill. The tender was closed on 24 August 2018.

Although good responses are received, the tender price

has not met with our reserved price.

The occupancy rate of the two blocks is 90% which

contributed satisfactory rental income.

4. Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

A residential premises comprised of two deluxe 3-storey
residential villas, namely Villa Begonia and Villa

Crocus. Each villa has its own private swimming pool,

garden, internal lift and two car parking spaces.

The two villas will undergo a lift renovation in addition

to the existing renovation works to upgrade the quality

of the villas.
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FREHES
Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Properties (Continued)

5.

New Villa Cecil, No. 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road,
Cheung Chau

A residential project developed into 2 phases with
total marketable gross floor area approximately 58,000

square feet.

Phase | comprised of 19 blocks of 2-storey residential
villas. The gross floor area of the villas ranged from
1,450 square feet to 2,700 square feet. Phase Il
comprised of 4 blocks of 2-storey residential villas. The
gross floor area of the villas ranged from approximately
2,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet. Recreational
facilities including swimming pool and landscape

garden are provided.

The Occupation Permit of Phase | already issued and
extensive renovation work is in progress. Leasing of
Phase 1 will be commenced as soon as the Occupation

Permit of Phase Il is obtained.

South View Garden, 80 Shek Pai Wan Road, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong

The residential units of the building were all sold except
14 car parking spaces were retained for rental purpose.

During the year, two car parking spaces were sold.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
China Property

Cheuk Nang Garden

Longhwa, Shenzhen

On 5 June 2018, the Shenzhen Housing and Construction
Bureau issued a draft plan for housing market reform in line
with Xi Jinping’s statement of “houses are for living, not for
speculation”. According to the plan, by 2035 Shenzhen’s
housing supply will reach 1.7 million units, which includes
around one million units for welfare and public rental
housing. Purchasing demand for the residential property

market in Shenzhen remained stable in the first half of 2018.

67% of units in Block 1, 2, 4 and 7 have been sold and
occupied in Cheuk Nang Garden. Some units in other

blocks are marketing for rent.

The registration at the Shenzhen Real Estate Registration
Center for obtaining the strata titles of all the units will
be carried out batch by batch. Currently more than half
of the Real Estate Registration Certificates were issued.
The marketing of the commercial spaces is in progress
and over 70% of the commercial spaces were leased out
at satisfactory rate. The renovation of the clubhouse is
completed. The operation of the swimming pool is pending
for the licence. It is anticipated that after all the strata titles
are received, we will apply for sales permit for marketing

some of the remaining residential units.
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Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
China Property (Continued)

Cheuk Nang e Riverside
Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

The development comprised land area of 38,983 square
metres (419,613 square feet). The total net floor area is
122,483 square metres (1,318,407 square feet) with multi-
storey buildings provides 849 residential units, 22 deluxe
villas by the riverside, 780 car parking spaces, clubhouse,
recreational facilities and shopping centre. The size of the
residential units and villas ranged from 65 square metres
(700 square feet) to 270 square metres (2,906 square feet).
The construction is completed. The inspection by various
governmental departments is in progress. The property

market at Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou remain stable.

Macau Property

The residential market in Macau continues to remain active
in the first half of 2018 which was reflected on the increase
in transaction volume during the period. A majority of the

purchasers are first-time buyers.

Golden Cotai No. 1

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

The building plan (ante projecto de obra) was approved.
Jorge Neto Valente, our lawyer in Macau has submitted the
application to the Macau government for a new land lease
contract in November last year but upto now, the draft land
lease contract and the amount of premium payable are
not yet issued by the government. We have instructed our

lawyer to follow up the matter closely.

The Stage 1 site formation excavation work was approved.
Due to the impending gazettal of the new land lease, the

consent to commence the work has not been issued.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Malaysia Property

I have been honoured to meet the new elected Prime
Minister Mahathir Mohamad in July this year to present
our investment in Malaysia to him. The conclusion of 14th
General Election will see plausible return of confident. The
Malaysian economy remain steady. During the first quarter
of 2018, the labour market continued perform well with
unemployment rate of 3.3%. To improve the sales target,
the developers are going on property roadshows around the
country to boost sales of new products and to clear existing
stock. The three-month tax holiday following the zero rating
of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) effective 1st June and
the re-introduction of the Sales and Services Tax (SST) only

on 1st September.

Phase | “Parkview”

Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur

The development is a ready built 41-storey residential
building providing 417 residential units and 163 car parking
spaces. The total gross floor area is 325,626 square feet.
Most units have already been sold. The remaining 27 unsold
units are operated as serviced apartments. Renovation of the
vacant serviced apartments has been commenced and will

be completed in stages. The remainders are all rented out.

Phase Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala
Lumpur

The development currently comprised of 4 blocks of
residential condominium with total approved gross
floor area is 1,708,648 square feet. The main podium is
completed upto Level 5. The revised building plan was
approved and we have obtained the amended Development
Order recently. We are currently in the process to apply for
amalgamation of the remaining lots of the project in order to

fulfill the conditions of the amended Development Order.
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FREHES
Chairman’s Statement

INVESTMENT IN BONDS AND STOCK

Our total investment in Bonds market as at 30 June 2018 is
HK$168,129,000. A total of HK$51,220,000 was purchased
and HK$15,846,000 was sold during the year. The market
price of our investment in the Hong Kong stocks as at
30 June 2018 is HK$7,128,000. During the year, a total
of HK$7,242,000 stock was sold and HK$nil stock was

purchased.

OUTLOOK

The Sino-US trade war is expected to negatively affect the
Hong Kong local economy, especially on the financial and
international trading sectors. Although the property supply
still cannot meet with the demand, the real estate market

will perform more stable.

The connection of the Hong Kong Section of the Express
Rail Link on 23 September 2018 will benefit our Longhwa
property as it shortened the travelling time between Hong
Kong and Shenzhen and other main cities in China. The
Shenzhen North Station of the Express Rail is located near

Cheuk Nang Garden which will benefit our investment.

The opening of the bridge between Hong Kong and Macau

will also benefit our investment in Macau.
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EERET DIRECTORS AND STAFF
BPEERAEETMETAEE —FHHE The dedication of our directors and staff during the year are
Bfe MR AEFRNEREREL  FMAE I much appreciated. Due to the operation in China, member

B 5 B A BUBIRECK o of our staff team are substantially increased.
EEEGm By order of the Board
iR CECIL CHAO
BiTERE Executive Chairman
B - N\FAAZ-+HEA Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS

CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil - Executive Chairman

Dr. Chao, aged 82, is the founder and Executive Chairman
of the Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor
of architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the
field of property, investment, finance and architectural
design for over fifty years. He has also worked for Hong
Kong Government Building Department and Architectural
Office and elected as director of Hong Kong Real Estate
Developers’ Association for consecutive 30 years. He
is a Hong Kong registered architect and a member of
the Royal Institute of British Architect and has obtained
Honorary Doctor Degree (Ph. D.) from the U.S. Morrison
University. Dr. Chao is also awarded 2004’s World
Outstanding Chinese and Lifetime Achievement Award
given by the ASEAN Outstanding Business Award 2016.
Dr. Chao is appointed as the Honorary Advisory Chairman
of the Business Advisory Councils of Asia Pacific Platinum
Business Club. Dr. Chao is the Chairman and beneficial
owner of Yan Yin Company Limited and Szehope Securities
Company Limited which are the controlling shareholders of

the Group.

LAM Ka Wai, Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 50, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lam is currently the Managing Director of an investment
bank and has over 20 years experience in investment
banking as well as over 3 years experience in accounting
and auditing. He is also the independent non-executive
director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
131), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive
director of Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (stock
code: 1229) from 25 March 2008 to 7 September 2017,
China Fortune Financial Group Limited (stock code:
290) from 14 September 2007 to 11 April 2014, Applied
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) from
1 October 2005 to 12 December 2011, Pearl Oriental
Oil Limited (stock code: 632) from 3 October 2008 to
19 March 2013, King Stone Energy Group Limited (stock
code: 663) from 23 April 2012 to 22 March 2013, Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821) from 4
January 2010 to 24 May 2012, CT Environmental Group
Limited (stock code: 1363) from 14 June 2011 to 15 April
2014, ZZNode Technologies Company Limited (now known
as China Chuanglian Education Group Limited, stock code:
2371) from 29 January 2008 to 5 October 2010, Hao Wen
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019) from 17 November
2010 to 16 May 2011, Well Way Group Limited (now
known as Global Mastermind Holdings Limited, stock code:
8063) from 24 March 2011 to 16 April 2014, China Railway
Logistics Limited (now known as Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited, stock code: 8089) from 22 December 2008 to 27
April 2012 and Finet Group Limited (stock code: 8317) from
5 August 2009 to 24 January 2011, companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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SUN Ping Hsu Samson
Dr. Sun, M.B.E., J.P., aged 93, is currently the Chairman

of the Sun International Group of Companies. He is also
holding independent non-executive directorship in two
other companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited and National Electronics Holdings
Limited. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Director
of Inchcape Hong Kong Ltd. and its predecessor Gilman
& Co. Ltd. from 1967 to his retirement in 1985. Dr. Sun
has over 60 years experience in marketing, distribution
and manufacturing of wrist watches, and over 30 years
in marketing and distribution of consumer products and
electronic goods. He has been a pioneer in developing trade
with China since 1979, and continued to be active in both

trading and manufacturing in China.

Dr. Sun has a long service record in leader’s capacity
in many voluntary community services and charitable
organizations, including Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the

Community Chest and Scout Association of Hong Kong.

TING Woo Shou Kenneth

Mr. Ting, SBS, JP, aged 75, is a Chairman and Managing
Director of Kader Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
180). He is also an Independent Non-executive Director
of Wheelock and Company Limited (stock code: 20) since
2003. Mr. Ting currently serves as the Honorary President
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Toys
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong Limited, and
the Honorary Life President of the Hong Kong Plastics

Manufacturers’ Association Limited.

Mr. Ting also serves as a member of a number of other trade
organisations and public committees such as The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce. He is a Life Honorary
Court Member of The Hong Kong University of Science and

Technology Court.
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LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Mr. Lee, aged 56, is currently the Managing Director of
Chee Yen Investment Company (PTC) Limited and holds
many directorships with companies in Hong Kong and
overseas. He earned his Bachelor degree in Business
Management & Economics from Sophia University Tokyo
in 1984. Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera
Corporation in Japan specialising in manufacturing
semiconductor packages. In 1987 he returned to Hong
Kong to establish a photographic and digital imaging
lighting manufacturing business distributing his products
internationally. A manufacturing, property development,
and property investment veteran with 33 years of
experience, Mr. Lee possesses a sound knowledge in
manufacturing, a sound knowledge in developing
distribution network internationally, and a sound knowledge

in real estate businesses in Hong Kong and Japan.

YUNG, Philip

Mr. Yung, aged 60, has joined our Group since June,
2005. Mr. Yung has more than 20 years experience in
the Accounting industry and Listed Property Developers
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yung is currently a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow Member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
holding a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr.

Yung is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company.
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HO Sau-Fun Connie

Miss Ho, aged 51, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of U.K.
She has been working in the company secretarial field for
over 25 years. Miss Ho is also a director of the subsidiaries

of the Company.

CHAO, Howard
Mr. Chao, aged 35, is the elder son of Dr. Cecil Chao, the

Group Executive Chairman and the controlling shareholder
of the Company and is the brother of Miss Gigi Chao, the
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chao hold degrees
of Master of Science in Real Estate and Bachelor of Arts in

Business Management.

Mr. Chao has joined the Group as Executive Manager since
January, 2006 and Executive Director of the Company
since 1 December 2006. He is a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Chonggqing
and Committee Member of The Chinese General Chamber

of Commerce.
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CHAO, Gigi

Ms. Chao, aged 39, is the eldest daughter of Dr. Cecil
Chao, the Group Executive Chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the company, and sister of Mr. Howard
Chao, Non-Executive Director of the company. Ms. Chao
rejoined the group in February 2011 as Senior Project
Manager and Executive Director since April 2011. She
graduated from the University of Manchester, Manchester
school of Architecture, England with a Bachelor of Arts in
Architecture with Honours. Subsequently, she worked with
prominent British Architect and Urban Designer Sir Terry
Farrell in London and Hong Kong where she participated in
projects such as Kowloon Station, Tsuen Wan West Station,
and various design competition submissions for prominent
iconic buildings in mainland China. Besides a background
in architecture and construction, her multi-faceted
experience in management and service was acquired from
an early career in marketing and retail services in Hong
Kong and China, during which she handled key accounts
such as Rolex, Audemars Piquet, Hong Kong Jockey Club,
Mont Blanc, inter alia. In 2017, she also completed her
LLB with Honours at the University of London International

Programmes.

Ms. Chao has always been a passionate member of
the community and regularly contributes her time to
charitable organisations. She is the founder of Hong
Kong registered charity Faith in Love Foundation, which
encourages volunteerism and alleviation of poverty through
scholarships, resource distribution, and emotional support
for underprivileged youth. Through Faith in Love, she
is also a specialist private sector advisor for the United
Nations Development Programme Being LGBTI in Asia. An
enthusiastic aviator, Gigi is Past President of the Hong Kong
Aviation Club and Honorary Specialist Flight Lieutenant of
the Hong Kong Air Cadets Corp.
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FHITES Non-Executive Directors

g CHAO Howard

PR LEE Ding Yue Joseph
BYKHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
HFRR SUN Ping Hsu Samson

TFE TING Woo Shou, Kenneth

eV LAM Ka Wai Graham
EREBRE AUDIT COMMITTEE

MRE (EE) LAM Ka Wai Graham (Chairman)
HFRIB SUN Ping Hsu Samson

TR LEE Ding Yue Joseph

FWEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
HRIE (F/E) SUN Ping Hsu Samson (Chairman)
T CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil

MR B LAM Ka Wai Graham
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial highlights

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2018 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$68,350,000 (Year ended 30 June 2017:
HK$1,682,786,000), a 95.9% decrease as compared
with last year. It was mainly due to realized 360 units
in Shenzhen during last year which accounted for
HK$1,638,797,000 revenue.

For property leasing, the Year recorded an increase of 1.3%
in rental income as compared with the corresponding year in
2017, amounting HK$42,727,000 (2017: HK$42,166,000).

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$44,619,000, a

96.4% decrease as compared with last year.

Other income recorded an increase of 189.7% to
HK$49,575,000 when compared with last year. The other
income for the Year were mainly attributed to dividend
income, interest income, gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, gain on disposal of held-
to-maturity investments and net exchange gain. Decrease
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$773,000 (2017: Increase
in fair value of HK$4,253,000). Increase in fair value of
investment properties amounted to HK$1,131,543,000
(2017: HK$74,213,000). Administrative expenses increased
by 14.9% to HK$144,410,000 as compared with last year.
Finance costs increased by 38.5% to HK$31,802,000 as
compared with last year. The increase was mainly due to
decrease in interest capitalized into investment properties
and properties under development for sale during year.
Income tax expenses decreased to HK$437,145,000
(2017: HK$747,945,000) which was mainly due to land
appreciation tax and profit tax in China arisen from sale of

properties in Shenzhen during last year.

Annual Report 2018 ## | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£E) HRAR

27



28

EEERRESTH

Management Discussion and Analysis

REEARAEZFTAEAEGLER
/606,619,000 L (=ZF — £ 4F
440,660,0008 7T) - BRERAF A1.10
BT (ZE—+HF:0.86/87L) r CEHED
BRAMNRII0ET(ZE—+H4F : 0.85%
TT) °

BERERARESRI5.08U(ZF—+
F:13.581M) - ER P HKRE TR
W(ZF—CF :6.58M) HE-_ZF—N
FERAZTHIEFEHIRERE22.581L
ZE—+F 1 20.081L) - ghERE K
BRE - IREAGREZFUARKE

EATAEFEEAEMAER
RZZE—NEXNAZ1+H ERXEFEBEARE
RSB 2 =BT 56,380,201,000%
T (ZZE—+tFXA=1+H :5,608,464,000
BL) R-ZFE—tEFAA=+H®EM
771,737,000/ 7L 3k13.8% °c lRIE =&
—N\NERA=ZTHEHNERTEBREH
569,710,858/ (—=ZF — 1+ : 531,254,617
BOAE EaBFEABRENETRER
B11208 T B_T—tFNA=Z+H
10.56/8 0 116.1% » AN A RIE=IFH AR
HHERESIENEFERREMELIAE
BLASIB  EEHEFAREEIG NG Z
BARE A PN o

BEEERRERFFARBEESN  AEE
B3 T KA A A R R

£

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was HK$606,619,000 (2017: HK$440,660,000). Basic
earnings per share was HK$1.10 (2017: HK$0.86) and fully
diluted earnings per share was HK$1.10 (2017: HK$0.85).

A final dividend of HK15.0 cents (2017: HK13.5 cents)
was proposed together with the interim dividend of HK7.5
cents (2017: HK6.5 cents) a total of HK22.5 cents for the
year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: HK20.0 cents). Scrip
dividend alternative was offered to shareholders in respect

of proposed final dividend.

Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s total equity attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$6,380,201,000 (30 June 2017: HK$5,608,464,000),
an increase of HK$771,737,000 or 13.8% when compared
with 30 June 2017. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 569,710,858 as at 30 June 2018 (2017:
531,254,617 shares), the total equity attributable to
the owners of the Company per share was HK$11.20,
representing a increase of 6.1% compared to HK$10.56 as
at 30 June 2017. The increase in total equity attributable to
owners of the Company per share was mainly attributable to
increase in fair value of investment properties but offset by

increase in number of ordinary shares during the Year.

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the
annual report, the Group did not have any confirmed future

plans for material investment or acquiring capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment in financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

As at 30 June 2018, the fair value of investment in listed
securities amounted to HK$7,128,000 was classified as the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. During
the Year, the portfolio was decreased by a net disposal
of HK$7,242,000 and loss on fair value of HK$773,000.
The investment in listed securities as at 30 June 2018
represented 0.1% (2017: 0.2%) of the total assets, which

formed part of the Group’s cash management activities.

Equity
The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2018

and 30 June 2017 were 569,710,858 and 531,254,617

respectively.

Debts and gearing

As at 30 June 2018,
borrowings amounted to HK$1,342,081,000 (2017:
HK$1,320,117,000). Cash and bank balances amounted
to HK$724,022,000 (2017: HK$913,706,000) and
net borrowing amounted to HK$618,059,000 (2017:
HK$406,411,000).

the Group’s bank and other

Total debts to equity ratio was 21.0% (30 June 2017:
23.5%) and net debt to equity ratio was 9.7% (30 June
2017: 7.2%).

The increase in the total debt to equity ratio and net debt to
equity ratio were mainly due to increase in bank borrowing
during the year and decrease in cash and bank balances
resulted from increase in investment in other financial assets

during year.
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As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Of the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings HK$1,342,081,000, 89.7%,
9.6% and 0.7% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years
and 2 to 5 years respectively by reference to the repayment
schedule of the loan agreement. The Group’s bank and
other borrowings carried interest rates by reference to
HIBOR.

Pledge of assets

As at 30 June 2018,

properties for sale,

the Group’s investment properties,
land and building and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss with their
respective carrying value of HK$2,076,830,000 (2017:
HK$2,714,974,000), HK$Nil (2017: HK$424,797,000),
HK$34,170,000 (2017: HK$27,324,000) and HK$Nil (2017:
HK$8,279,000) were pledged to secure general banking

facilities of the Group.

Finance costs

Financial costs included interest expenses on bank
and other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment
fee expenses.
HK$13,052,000 as compared to HK$14,046,000 for the

Interest expenses for the Year amounted to

Interest capitalized for the Year was

last year.
HK$31,802,000,
interest expenses of HK$22,963,000 recorded for the same

representing 38.5% increase over the

period last year. The increase in interest expense was mainly
due to increase in bank loans interest and other borrowing
cost during the Year. The average interest rate over the year
under review was 3.0% (2017: 2.5%) which was expressed
as a percentage of total interest expenses over the average

total borrowing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property valuation

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs.
Roma Appraisals Limited and K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited
in respect of the Group’s investment properties and
certain property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2018
and that valuation was used in preparing 2018 financial
statements. The Group’s investment properties and
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$5,503,907,000 and HK$1,591,670,000 respectively
making the total HK$7,095,577,000 (2017: investment
properties and investment properties under development
were valued at HK$4,106,840,000 and HK$1,538,014,000
making the total HK$5,644,854,000). The increase in fair
value of approximately HK$1,131,543,000 was credited
to the statement of profit and loss for the Year. The Group
land and building held for a director’s quarter carried
at fair value were valued at HK$34,170,000 (2017:
HK$27,324,000). Increase in fair value of HK$6,846,000
for the Year were recorded in property revaluation reserves.
Properties under development for sale of the Group were
stated at lower of cost or net realisable value in the financial

statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
and control the various types of risk it faces. This is
supplemented by active management involvement and

effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed a total of 90 (as at
30 June 2017: 49) staff.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive
Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for
their better commitment and performance. No share option

scheme was adopted for the Year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Profit attributable to owners of the Company and earnings

per share

The Company uses the profit attributable to owners of
the company and earnings per share as the Group’s as
the financial key performance indicator. The Company’s
aim to increase the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the company and earnings per share. We compare the
profit against the previous period as a measure of the

performance. Detail refer to Financial Highlight section.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has appointed external professional firm to
perform periodic review on the internal control of the
Group. Current year review has completed and some minor
weakness have been identified. The Group will carry out

necessary procedures to improve these control weaknesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
COMPLIANCE

Our environmental policy is to meet all the environmental

legislations which relate to our operation.

A review on the performance on our environmental policy

has been carried out.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Relationships with vendors

We have established relationships with numbers of suppliers
for the construction and renovation work in Hong Kong,
PRC and Malaysia. Other than one supplier relating to our
construction work which recently has financial problem,
the work originally carried by the contractor has been
reassigned to other contractor. Other than this, there is no

major events affecting our relationships with our suppliers.

Relationships with customers

Our sale and leasing team maintain good relationship with

our customers especially our tenants.

Relationships with employees

During the Year, we are not aware of any major event

affecting our relationships with our employees.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Hong Kong Properties

The government has implemented a new set of initiatives
targeting the housing problem and helping local buyers to
get on the property ladder. However, due to a shortage of
supply and low interest rates, the effectiveness is yet to be
know. The residential prices still continue to stand firm in
the first half of the year 2018 and will turn stable in the

second half of the year.

The progress of our projects is as follows:-

1. One Kowloon Peak, No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

Construction of both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the project
is all completed. The occupation permit for Phase 1
has been obtained and application for Phase 2 has
been submitted. Due to the liquidation of the previous
contractors, some of the structure and materials do
not have certificates for verification. The Building
Department has identified certain areas which required
examination works to be carried out. The rectification
works require part of the structure to be opened up for
laboratory test. The new contractor has proceeded with

the works diligently.

2. Villa Cecil Phase Il, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

The occupancy rate of the three blocks is 80% which
contributed good rental income to the Group. Unit 3A
of Block 2 was sold and the sale and purchase was
completed in August 2018. Subdivision into smaller
units for marketing purpose are under construction.
Some renovation works for building elevation, driveway

and carparks has been completed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

During the year, the Group has issued tender inviting
potential purchasers to tender for the entire Vila Cecil
Phase Ill. The tender was closed on 24 August 2018.
Although good responses are received, the tender price

has not met with our reserved price.

The occupancy rate of the two blocks is 90% which

contributed good rental income to the Group.

Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

Renovation works for upgrading the quality of the two

blocks of villas is still in progress.

New Villa Cecil, 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road, Cheung
Chau

Construction of Phase | has already been completed
and occupation permit obtained. The leasing of Phase |
will be commence when occupation permit for Phase Il

obtained.

China Properties

On 2 June 2018, the Shenzhen Housing and Construction
Bureau issued a draft plan for housing market reform in line
with Xi Jinping’s statement of “house are for living, not for
speculation”. According to the plan, by 2035, Shenzhen’s
housing supply will reach 1,7 million units, which includes
around one million units for welfare and public rental
housing. Purchasing demand for the residential property

market in Shenzhen remained stable in the first half of 2018.
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Cheuk Nang Garden

Longhwa, Shenzhen

The registration at the Shenzhen Real Estate Registration
Center for obtaining the strata titles of all the units has been
carried out batch by batch. Currently more than half of the
units have been registered and certificate obtained. Leasing

of the commercial space have been carried out.

Cheuk Nang e Riverside

Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou
The construction has already completed. The inspection by

various governmental departments is in progress.

Macau Properties

The residential market in Macau continues to remain active
in the first half of 2018.

Golden Cotai No. 1

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

The building plan (ante projecto de obra) was approved.
Application for change of land use was submitted in last
November but the draft land lease contract and the amount

of premium payable are not yet issued by the government.

Malaysia Properties

The Malaysia economy remain steady in 2018.

Phase | “Parkview”

Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
The 27 units in Phase | are operated s service apartment.
The renovation of the vacant serviced apartments has

commenced and will be completed in stages.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%E) AR28 | Annual Report 2018 £



2 —Hi[ Cecil Central Residence./
EREES7ERE 1138558 5113865 I EL

BEBERCESEE WESKOESTE
123 R < (Development Order) ° F 1M
BREERBAHEENEG LM -

R

AP XESBRUBTEAMEHEELR
EXE LEITRNERES - #AE
EMEREBRRBERRK  BFHEMS X
W RIAEIRE -

BRAETE RFIMSERATSHRESHE
RKEFIESMBEKR -

BB R R
Management Discussion and Analysis

Phases Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia

The building plan was approved and amended Development
Order obtained recently. development recently. Application
for amalgamation of the remaining lots of the project are in

process.

POLICY AND OUTLOOK

The Sino-Us trade war is expected to negatively affect the
Hong Kong local economy, especially on the financial and
international trading sectors. Although the property supply
still cannot meet with the demand, the real estate market

will perform more stable.

Our investment in China, Macau and Malaysia is anticipated

achieved satisfactory results in the years to come.
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the

performance of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company
complied with all Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“the Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of

the Listing Rules, except the following deviations:

1. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the Code.

2. Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be

clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.
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DIRECTORS
A.1 THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the
business operations of the Group. It formulates
strategic directions, oversees the operations and
monitors the financial performance of the Group.
The management manages the business of the
Group within the delegated power and authority by
the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either
directly or through Board Committees and some
of which have been delegated to the management
of the Company. The types of decisions which are

reserved to be taken by the Board include:

1. matters relating to conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a director of the

Company;

2. formulation of the Company’s policies relating
to the overall strategic direction and strategic
plans, key business and financial objectives,
dividend policy or entering into contract
involving significant capital acquisition or

expenditure;

3. financial controls, compliance and risk
management for the approval of annual
operating and capital expenditure budgets,
the Company’s financial statements, published
reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosure required under the Listing

Rules or other statutory requirements;

4. changes to the Company’s capital structure,
including reductions of share capital, share

buy-backs or issue of new securities;
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major appointments or removal to the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Company’s
chief financial officer, company secretary and

external auditor;

changes to the terms of reference or
membership of any committee of the Board and
the authority delegated to the Chief Executive

Officer and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the senior

management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practical
Manual of the Company, the Code of Ethics
and Securities Transactions entered into
by the directors and other specified senior
management of the Group, group legal policy
(if any) and group system control and risk

management policy.

The terms of reference of the Board includes the

following:

(@)

(c)

to develop and review an issuer’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the board;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of

directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the issuer’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements;
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o Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)

applicable to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

The Board should be responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set out above or it
may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other save that Ms. Gigi Chao and Mr.
Howard Chao are the children of the Chairman.
When the Board considers any proposal or
transaction in which a Director has a conflict of
interest, he declares his interest and is required to

abstain from voting.

BOARD MEETINGS

» %% During the year, four full board meetings were held and the

individual attendance of each director is set out below:

HEEEESBRHY
Number of Board
Meetings attended

HE =

Attendance rate

4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
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A.2 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has identified the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules and
understood that the two positions cannot be performed
by the same individual to ensure that there is a clear
division of responsibilities at the board level to entail a

balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the
Board, for ensuring that the Board functions effectively,
and for ensuring communication of the views of
the Board to the public. In performing this role, the
Chairman’s responsibilities include chairing meetings
of the Board; ensuring the board meetings receive
accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring
constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors; formulating for discussion and
decision, questions which have been moved for the
consideration of the Board; ensuring that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings;
acting as liaison between the Board and management;
in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and
the company secretary or his/her designated delegates,
drawing up and approving the agenda for each board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any
matters proposed by the other directors for inclusion
in the agenda; and at least annually hold meetings
with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the presence of the

executive directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for
recommending policy and strategic directions for Board
approval, implementing the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board and conducting the day-to-day

operation of the Company.
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AARIRRREFE EMRBEBERE The Company currently cannot comply with the
RITBAREBE D BEZRE - HPIRIE requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
BIBTFREKRSEE NEEREITHRA Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
H - #HERT -MBFEAREEK- different channels, still looking for a suitable person

to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.

EEgcEmX A.3 BOARD COMPOSITION

ExgxXR AT EET(TER] - The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (the
EFER-RBIUIFNITES - WA “Chairman”). The Board comprises three Independent
HITES MR TEERHAK  EFH Non-Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors
FRBERFBHNAFHRFIEERS and Four Executive Directors. The names, biographical
BEBABREN ] —&1 - 2E8IFLIEH details of the directors are set out in the “Profiles
TEERIFNTESHRARRFK of Directors and Senior Management” to the annual
LELCBREENE EEFBREHE report. All Independent Non-Executive Directors and
He  ARTEFEINTES (B Non-Executive Directors bring a variety of experience
WY IERITES)  efFEECHEE— and expertise to the Company. The Board includes a
EREM - e BERUELR B L HE - LA balanced composition of executive and non-executive
MEIERITEESHE RHME I R AL - (F directors (including independent non-executive
M EREZESN - directors) so that there is an independent element on

the Board which can effectively exercise independent
judgment, and that non-executive directors should be

of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry

weight.
EFTEABMZ KT » YRR RBE I IE The independent non-executive directors are identified
MITEEZ2 510 - in all corporate communications that disclose the

names of the directors.

ARRABZEEZRENEAEEBEH An updated list of directors of the Company and their

MARRRBZRZBER - role and function is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.
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A.4 APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF

DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into appointment letters
with all the directors of the Company. Pursuant to
such appointment letters, each of the directors of the
Company is not appointed on fixed term but is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, all newly
appointed Directors (either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board) shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken
into account determining the Directors who are to retire

by rotation at such meeting.

The Board at all times met the requirements of Rules
3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-Executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 to the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors are explicitly

identified in all corporate communications.
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Independent non-executive director serving more
than 9 years could be relevant to the determination
of his independence. According to Code A.4.3, if an
independent non-executive director serviced more than
9 years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
At the annual general meeting held on 22 November
2017, no independent non-executive director was

required to retire.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, a shareholder can propose a person for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting
by giving the Company notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company at least
seven days before the date of the general meeting. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a Director are available and

accessible on the Company’s website.

In addition, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire
on every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons
who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall be determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall

be eligible for re-election.
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A.5 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee
with specific terms of reference which deals clearly
with its authorities and duties. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson,
Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth and one Executive
Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil. Dr. Chao

Sze Tsung Cecil is the Chairman of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee will review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify suitable
candidates to the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment or re-
appointment of members of the Board and succession
planning for director, in particular, the chairman and
the chief executive. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors. Appointment of new Directors is

reserved for the Board’s approval.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee ensures that the Board comprises members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate
knowledge necessary to accomplish the Group’s
business development, strategies, operation, challenges
and opportunities. The Nomination Committee take
into account of that person’s skill, qualifications and
expected contributions to the Company before making
any recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment or re-appointment of members of the
Board.
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Where the board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director
at the general meeting, the papers sent to shareholders
accompanying that resolution prior to the general
meeting already included the reason why the board

believes he is independent and should be re-elected.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, the
Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting

out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The individual attendance of each member is set out

below:
HEEEESBRH
Number of H =R
BEEnE Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
=L Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
HER Sun Ping Hsu Samson 1/1 100%
THsE Ting Woo Shou Kenneth 1/1 100%
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A6 EEEE A.6 RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

EMTEFERNERBEZEREXS
o B RRE MR EBiES - R
ESUAKREBEGREERBRE TH
WrEEHARK TR MEBES
MEBRTZEENER -

ARPIEHRAESREREEBAASER
AR AKEERERBAELAERE
ERBZEMER -

FRTEFNRERTE  2RE=ES
Mo P RRES R ARIRE M
Bl BR X2ZERBRTENES
HE #HBYER  AHBEBEENS

Each newly appointed Director will be received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that
he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules

and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business

to the Directors.

The functions of non-executive directors include
participating in board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,

policy, performance, accountability, resources, key

BRIFHIEEASEER  BRALERE
FHEEe  FHEES - REZEER

BRBEKE - MMFRE T

appointments and standards of conduct; taking the lead
where potential conflicts of interests arise; serving on
audit, remuneration, nomination and other governance
committee, if invited and scrutinizing the issuer’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring performance reporting.

ESZEHRS DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

RNATECEM EHRBIMEE1007E, E 3 The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
TAESETESRSHHZAESTE] ([MZX#  Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
FRADURERRAREFTETELSRS °
RNATEEYEIRBATRIXA - BERHL securities transactions by directors of the Company. A
EARRNREFEEBE 2 EESEH277H  copy of the Model Code has been sent to each Director of
HART — & B R Bt /& F EEE N MR E A A -
MEERHEABME  UIEEEEMT) Directors one month before the date of the Board meeting
BHBEEN  THEBARAFESNDT to approve the Company’s half-year result and two months
AT H-

Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for

the Company. Also, formal written notices are sent to the

before the approval of annual result, as a reminder that the
Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the

Company until after such results have been published.
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Under the Model Code, Directors of the Company are
required to notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman
himself, he must notify the Board and receive a dated
written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting year under review.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2018 in the shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on

pages 80 to 81.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to

Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company circulates details of training courses which
may be of interest to directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s

expense.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code which came into effect on
1 April 2012 on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provide
a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June

2018 and up to the date of publication of this annual report.
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BHE-_Z—- N\EXA=1tBItFEENKEAEZE The individual training record of each Director received
NEBRHZEOE  SEEMESEY 2@ for the year ended 30 June 2018 and up to the date of
R EREL AL IN T publication of this annual report is summarized below:

RAEE SRR 2 R

ESHENEH Fir e 2 823 Training provider or source Fr R (/0 B)
Name and Title of Directors Training received of training materials Time spent (hour)
B AR HERERREN - 2
EXEIRRUOES %%ﬁﬁﬂ

Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Review of updates on the ESG Report

Chairman of the Board

and Executive Director

#e EEMREREZPCLUBEETE GEON 35
HOTES Post Graduate Certificate in University of London
Chao Gigi, Laws (PCLL) Commercial Trust Law

Executive Director

FEMEEBZPCLLERCERE (CEON 15
Post Graduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) ~ University of London

Multinational Enterprises in Contest

ik FERCBMENRTER EEhELEEY 1
EHTES The latest development of Hong Kong’s ~ Hong Kong Chinese Chamber of
Chao Howard, financial technology Commerce

Non-Executive Director

BNBELRREARERNER BETEARE 1
Latest developments in waste levy and ~ Hong Kong Chinese Chamber of
environmental protection policies Commerce

NERESHMRERER AR BETEARE 1.5
RETAHEERARER Hong Kong Chinese Chamber of
Sharing experience in research and Commerce

development of financial technology
products, as well as the operation and
future development of crowdfunding

platforms
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ESfAREE

Name and Title of Directors

KR

BUFATES

Sun Ping Hsu Samson,
Independent Non-Executive

Director

FRE
FNTES
Lee Ding Yue Joseph,

Non-Executive Director

Fir i 2 323

Training received

BAERERNZNER
The latest development of rail transport

in Hong Kong

ERRBI KA EHHRRER
Hong Kong's political and Mainland

affairs development policy

AN RREAEEERRAAZ

Analysis and outlook on the prospects for

Hong Kong's economic development

AEIAIZRERBERMILE
Share the experience of “Starting a

business and buying quality shops”

BlF Rl e ARl R B
Innovative technology application and

venture capital opportunities

HEBRRE HEREAREN
BHEH
Review of updates on the ESG Report

RAIZEZMAL] -
ARNETEREL

Role of Company Director 1:
Overview of Legal &

Regulatory Framework

e pol 2/
iE E?u:#ﬁ%%

Corporate Governance Report

RAEIE RIF A2 KR
Training provider or source

of training materials

BETELRE
Hong Kong Chinese Chamber of

Commerce

BATEREE
Hong Kong Chinese Chamber of

Commerce

EETEARE
Hong Kong Chinese Chamber of

Commerce

BHEEFHE
Liberal Party Youth League

EREFFHE
Liberal Party Youth League

ERESER
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Fr R B B (/0 B

Time spent (hour)

1.5
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ESHAREE Frie Al

Name and Title of Directors Training received
T4% BUFBTESHE
FHITES The KPMG INED Forum

Ting Woo Shou Kenneth,

Non-Executive Director

HERE MERAN EHRE
BUFHTES Enhancing HK’s Listing Framework
Lam Ka Wai Graham,

Independent Non-Executive

Director

Bk BRIPOSH F 5 BB
HITES Director training webcast on [POS
Yung Philip,

Executive Director FERBEM017

Annual taxation update 2017

“ErEAHEeE
Mainland Tax Conference 2017

EH RER2017FH T R
RENEBHBREER
Updates and application of new
and revised HKFRSs for 2017

EREHEH017
Annual Accounting Update 2017

RASEINE SRR 2 R

Training provider or source

of training materials

2 e MmERA

KPMG

Stephen Hui

EREBARHM
HKEX

FERHHLE
HKICPA

TELHHLE
HKICPA

BAGHELE
HKICPA

BAGHAE
HKICPA
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Name and Title of Directors

fal %525
BOBERRANE
Ho Sau Fun Connie,
Executive Director

and Company Secretary

Fir i 2 323

Training received

EiaNmE

Corporate Governance Report

RAEIE RIF A2 KR
Training provider or source

of training materials

RARERBEIZ ERBTNELE
MARKMBEERS HKICS

Company Secretarial Practical

Training Series: Continuing

Obligations of Listed Company

B HERERERE-RRZHE BEBHNELE
ESG Reporting - The Road Ahead HKICS
tEEREEACHEENER BBRINELS
Developments in Enterprise Risk HKICS
Management and Crisis Management
RENEEBEIZT EEBHNELE
PENRTEFPNESRD HKICS
Company Secretarial Practical
Training Series: Bank Accounts
and Fund Flow in China
AFAB BEEHUELE
AR T RRED M EE HKICS

Corporate Governance:
Are We Behind the Curve in Asia?

HERFOESE HEREREE? EEEINEL

SES 3

HKICS

What is Good ESG Reporting?

What is in Demand?

N
E

Fr R B B (/0 B

Time spent (hour)

25

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5
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ESfAREE

Name and Title of Directors

Fir i 2 323

Training received

RAEIE RIF A2 KR
Training provider or source

of training materials

Fr R B B (/0 B

Time spent (hour)

onfa @ o M2 B R AL BERNELS 1.5

How to Avoid and Handle HKICS

Employment Disputes

TEREBNETA BABHNELE 1.5

Get to Know the Hong Kong HKICS

Takeover Code

WIFEEEEERT BEe 6

SFC Regulatory Forum 2018 SFC
REZ2-_FT—N\FA=ZF+BHILFE # During the year ended 30 June 2018, Ms. Ho Sau
TEERN TM\EH% SZ+E®# ™ Fun Connie, an Executive Director and the Company
FRAIE3 29K ET TV RI5/N6F 2 HHEIE  Secretary, has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
ES-2l professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =#

A7 ERRMURER

RBARPIABERAR  EFFUR
F ERERIEMEFTEMSTALE
e

REBERAREHMNEL THXFELIE
B - REBEAQARMEMERMA - &
SRR TAERIBA  ZHRREARN

EELIES i S

Listing Rules.

A.7 SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone
or through other means of electronic communication in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before
each regular meeting. According to the Company’s
Articles of Association, a Director may waive notice of
any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or

retrospective.
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An agenda and accompanying board papers were sent
to all directors at least 3 days before the intended date

of board or board committee meeting.

The directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are

followed.

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions
or minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee

meetings.

The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions
are sent to all Directors/Board Committee members
within a reasonable time after each Board and Board
Committee meeting and are available for inspection by

Directors/Board Committee members.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board/Board Committees and

decisions reached.

The Directors are given an opportunity to comment on
draft Board minutes. Final version of Board minutes
is placed on record within a reasonable time after the

Board meeting.

Directors have been advised that the Company
Secretary can arrange independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company should such advice be

considered necessary by any Director.

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of
written resolutions so that all Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) can note and
comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is

granted.
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A.8

REBEEZHFECHRE  EF2EWN
EEFCNE A ERHEABITRSZH

& o

FHITESZEH
ETRAIK R+ 2 SFRIEXA4.1 B
KIEMTEETNLRERIETES @ WA
BEXEER - ARRBEUIRITES
HEIETER - WARBAARIZAF]
HEERRNEARARGXELE=F
EmRE— R RESEESR - At
RRABRRE KIS S5 58 BT
B - AR IEMITE SR U 2Bl
RTE59,8008B T AT —UME AT
144,000/ 7T ©

EERESREBABNTFHR
EEET&

B.1 HFNEES
KABKYFMEE S ARNRATN
EEMeBRRMEMERAMNeEER

RHER -

FNEERRA=KE F BIEM
(B IFATE S ARED T KA
KEEER —UATESHELZ
K FZREBLIR/EEGIRE -

FHZEeNZBELED TIH
AR B2 #9 B (www.cheuknang.
com.hk) M B 2B 2 A8 B o

A.8

The Board having considered the attendance records
of the Directors is satisfied that each Director spends

sufficient time performing his responsibilities.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and should be subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years in accordance with the provision
of the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
Four out of the five non-executive directors have
remunerated at HK$59,800 per year and the remaining
has remunerated at HK$144,000 per year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

B.1 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee to advise the Company on the directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related

matters.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised
of three members includes two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu
Samson and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham and one
Executive Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung
Cecil. Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson is the Chairman of

the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.
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ERENHEFBOT

REER Name of Member
HERE Sun Ping Hsu Samson
N7 Lam Ka Wai Graham
=R Chao Sze Tsung Cecil

ERBE
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The Remuneration Committee is primary
responsible for formulating and making
recommendation to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structuring the remuneration of
the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group. No Directors or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The remuneration package of the
Directors includes salary, bonus and pension. The
remuneration level is determined by reference
to the expertise, performance and experience

possessed by each Director.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at
least once a year or as requested by the director

responsible for resources function.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING

During the year, the Remuneration Committee
meeting was held in February 2018 reviewed and
recommended the remuneration package of all
directors and senior management to the Board for
approval with the relevant directors abstained to

the discussion of his/her remuneration package.

The individual attendance of each member is set

out below:

HESBRH
Number of
HE R

attended Attendance rate

meetings

1/1 100%
1/1 100%
1/1 100%
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3. BMERZEE
C.1 B ER

EEERAEESRET D NEE
NER  BREFE A UBERGMH
PIfER IS R EMER  (FEA
BRENE EEEERSARNES
SREBRHEENER - HINBEHEAN
RNAMKRR - PR R RORD
ERSREROFE - AT EAE
EFETCEMARA) FH3.080K &
FE+T=—EMRENRE -

EFHYBHREXZEM

EFBREFRNREARAMBER
ZEAE - WRERMBERERIIREA
PIRE S EREst ERIMRE - &
FAMEIRAN SR B R T S AR 15
WK e

NN N 8 = TN e 2 NN
FERER 2 EE 2 BAHNFEISH
E2HE106B 2 XHAMBEE A -

EEER  AERELEE—YAE
BRRITRM - FIEER M #EE
REWEETBTRAERTHRAS
HEBERNEBREZERNRAFEL

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
C.1 FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Management provide sufficient explanation
and information to the board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. All
members of the board are provided with monthly
updates giving and balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient details to enable the

board and each director to discharge their duties.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of such financial

statements.

The statement of the external auditor of
the Company with regard to their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s

Report on page 95 to 106.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
specific enquiries of all directors, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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C.2 INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility to review annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. In 2017, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and

financial reporting functions.

Risk management is defined as the continuing
process to identify, analyse, evaluate, and treat loss
exposures and monitor risk control and financial

resources to mitigate the adverse effects of loss.

Risk Appetite is the amount of risk that the Board
and the management are willing to accept in the

pursuit of the Group’s value.

Risk Management Approach
The Group adopts a “Top-Down” approach in

the Group’s risk management framework which
the Board, the Audit Committee, the senior
management and the department heads exercise
strong oversight on the establishment and

maintenance of the risk management policy.

Risk Governance Structure
The Group’s risk governance structure consists of

the following parties:

i. The Board of Directors
— evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in

achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;
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The

oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk

management systems on an ongoing basis;

ensure that a review of effectiveness of
the Group’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management system has been conducted
at least annually and report to shareholder
that it has done so in Corporate

Governance Report.

Audit Committee
review the Group’s risk management

systems;

discuss the risk management systems with
management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective

systems;

consider major investigation findings on
risk management matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings.

Senior Management

identify corporate risks;

review of corporate risks and mitigating

actions;

consider risks when making decisions;

articulate risk appetite when making

decisions.
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iv. Department Head
— identify risks to the achievement of their unit’s
business plan which might also be corporate
risks, and to advise senior management and

Board of Directors of such risks;

— identify any relevant mitigating actions, to
include these within their unit’s business
plan, and to ensure the objective of business

plan is achieved;

—  be alert to other risks that might develop.

v. All Staffs
— be alert to possible corporate risks and report
the risks that they have identified to their

managers.

The Group’s risk management process comprises 4

core stages:

(1) Risk identification
Each of the head of department is responsible
to identify potential risks that affect the Group
through assessing the market, competition
environment and the daily operations by
considering the risks relating to their processes.
The risks are then recorded into the risk register,
which serves to summarize the risks of the
Group as a whole by four risk categories, namely
reporting, operational, strategic and compliance

risk.
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The risk register is submitted to the internal
audit function and the Audit Committee for

review upon completion.

The identification process is performed
annually to respond to the changing business
environment and to determine whether
adjustment is required for the risk identification

result.

Risk Assessment and Prioritization

(2.1) Risk Assessment
A common set of assessment criteria is
deployed across departments to assess
the risks in terms of likelihood and
consequences. The head of departments
are required to assign the ratings on the
likelihood and the consequences of the
risks in accordance with the assessment
criteria. The rating applied ranges from 1
to 5.

(2.2) Risk Prioritization
Risks are prioritized in descending order
after the overall ratings are calculated. The
design of risk mitigation plan is based on
the risk prioritization and the details of the
plan are described in “(3) Risk Response”

sections.

(2.3) Assessment Criteria
The assessment criteria is determined by
the management and approved by the
Board.
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(3) Risk Response
(3.1) Risk Mitigation Plan

Each department head is responsible to

formulate the risk mitigation plan upon the

completion of risk prioritization.

The risk mitigation plan includes the

following sections:

(i)

(i)

Risk Identified

The Group will list out the top 10 risks
in descending order by using result
from the risk assessment. Description
of the risks and the impact of the risks
are required to be included under this

section.

Risk mitigation plan

In the midst of the design of the
risk mitigation action, management
needs to consider the impact and the
vulnerability of the risks, and select
the most appropriate measure to
respond to the risks. The following
reference table summarizes the
types of the risk responses and the
circumstances to be adopted upon the

formulation of the risk mitigation:
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CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =#

g

R B B S A ERANER

Type of Risk Responses | Circumstances to be adopted

%= FERERBEIEEN  WEERBARKFEZA -

Acceptance Risks are considered as immaterial and it is within the
risk acceptance level.

VEReS [\ B 2 7R A A BB ZE R - 4R T4 e R DA S R B B R B B 9%

Reduction ZHIKTE o
Risks are considered as material, and controls are
available to reduce the risks to an acceptable level.

x= RB#AARERNER  ARAREEKAREERZX

Sharing K- BB D L HE RS M S A HE o
Risks are considered as material, and the Group is not
able to reduce the risks to an acceptable level solely.
The portion of risks has to be transferred to or shared
with other parties.

s FERERAENE BRI —FENH X FED TE

Avoidance HEKF - HERRAREEIATEINOKFIFTETSE
NS N
Risks are considered as material, and the risks cannot
be reduced to an acceptable level by all means, or it
requires unreasonably high cost to reduce the risks to an
acceptable level.

3.2) MBEREHABR

—%Fﬂﬁ/\Aﬁﬂrkﬁ%&afu
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MESEMNETZESY
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(3.2) Reporting to those charged with Governance

After department heads submit the risk
register and risk mitigation plans to
senior management for review, the senior
management will perform the consolidation of
the risk register and the risk mitigation plans,

thereafter report to the Board and the Audit

Committee.
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(4) Risk Monitoring
(4.1) Daily Monitoring
The department heads are responsible to
implement and monitor the risk mitigation
plan, and review its effectiveness since

implementation.

(4.2) Annual Review Reporting
A report, which summarises the monitoring
activities during the year and the risk
mitigation results, is prepared by each
responsible department annually, and
submitted to senior management for

review.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Company has developed its disclosure policy
to provide the general guideline on handling
confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors,
officers, senior management and the relevant
employees. The Company has executed supervision
programs to confirm the strict prohibition
from unauthorised access to and use of inside

information.

The Group does not have an internal audit function
as the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group’s business. The situation will be

reviewed from time to time.
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The Board also contracted Grant Thornton Advisory
Services Limited to conduct the risk management
and internal control reviews of the property
development group in Shenzhen for the year ended
30 June 2018. The reports were distributed to the

Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Board
considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control system as adequate and effective
and that the Company has complied with the code

provisions on internal control of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises of two
independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director, namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu
Lam Ka Wai Graham and Mr. Lee
Ding Yue Joseph. Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham is the

Samson, Mr.

chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the

Listing Rules.

The

Committee are posted on the websites of the

terms of reference of the Audit
Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board to oversee the financial report
system, risk management and internal control
procedures and the external audit functions. The
Audit Committee annually assesses the appointment
of the external auditor, taking into account the
quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditor service provided, the audit firm’s quality
control procedures, relationships between the
external auditor and the Company and the

independence of the external auditor.
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As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the Code,
details of arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters have been
included in the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee in February 2012.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during the one year after he/she ceases to be a

partner of the auditing firm.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings
were held in September 2017 and February 2018
with the presence of the external auditor. The
individual attendance of each member is set out

below:

HEEEAH
Number of

HE =

meetings attended Attendance rate

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
procedure and policies adopted by the Company
and discussed with management and the external
auditor regarding the internal controls and financial
reporting matters. To monitor the integrity of the
financial statements of the Company, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the interim report for the
six months ended 31 December, 2017, the audited
financial statements for the year ended 30 June,
2018 before their submission to the Board. There
was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment
of the external auditor during the year under

review.
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4. COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS
D.1 INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance relationship
and communication with its investors. Detailed
information about the Company’s performance and
activities is provided in the annual report and the
interim report which are sent to shareholders. The
Company maintains close communications with
investors analysts, fund managers and the media by
individual interviews and meetings. The Group also
responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely
manner. The Board also welcomes the views of
shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’” meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with

the Board or senior management directly.

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy which was posted in the
Company’s website and of the Stock Exchange.
The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors,

including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports,
interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars
and proxy forms) required under the Listing
Rules, and shareholders can choose (or are
deemed to have consented) to receive such
documents using electronic means through the

Company’s website;

(ii) the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise comments and

exchange views with the Board;
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(iii) updated and key information on the Group
is available on the website of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk);

(iv) the Company’s website offers a communication
channel between the Company and its

shareholders;

(v) the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders

for share registration and related matters; and

(vi) the Company Secretary of the Company
handles enquiries from shareholders and

investors generally.

The annual general meeting is used as an
opportunity to communicate with all shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meetings for which a notice would be
served with at least 20 clear business days. For
all other general meetings, notice will be sent to
shareholders with at least 10 clear business days.
The Chairman and/or Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meetings. At general meetings, separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue
such as the election of individual directors and re-

appointment of auditor.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll is included in a
circular to shareholders accompanied the annual
report. The circular also includes relevant details
on proposed resolutions, and biographies of each

candidates standing for re-election.

The constitutional document of the Company
was posted in the Company’s website and of the
Stock Exchange. There has not been change in the

constitutional document during the year.
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At the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company, the external auditor and the Chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee were attended to
answer the questions from the shareholders. The
Chairman of the meeting has explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll, and answered

questions from shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting exercised his power
under the Company’s Articles of Association to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by
way of a poll. Representatives of the Share Registrar
of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2016
annual general meeting. Since the Company’s 2009
annual general meeting, all the resolutions put to
vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by poll. Poll results were posted on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms Ho Sau Fun Connie, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities
are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper
Board procedures and the timely preparation and
dissemination of meeting agendas and papers to the
Directors. Minutes of all meeting of the Board and the
Board committees are prepared and maintained by
the Company Secretary to record in sufficient details
the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or the Board Committee. All minutes are sent to
the Directors and are available for inspection by any

Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments relating to the
Group and that it takes these into consideration when

making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible
for seeking to ensure the Group’s compliance with
all obligations under the Listing Rules and The Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and dispatch of
annual reports and interim reports within the time limits
set out in the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination

of the same to the Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the
Directors on their obligations for disclosures of interests
and dealings in the Group’s securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures
that the standard and disclosures required by the Listing
Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the

annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. All members of
the Board have access to the advice and service of the

Company Secretary.

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in February 1996 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. Ms. Ho
Sau Fun Connie has confirmed, following specific
enquiry made by the Company that she has complied
with all the qualifications, experience and training

requirements of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below are procedures by which Shareholders
may: (1) calling for extraordinary general meeting;
(2) putting forward enquiries to the Board and (3)
putting forward proposals at general meetings. These
procedures are generally governed by the provisions of
the Company’s Articles of Association and applicable
laws, rules and regulations, which prevail over what is

stated in this section in case of inconsistencies.

1. Calling for Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “CO”), registered
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings may
request to call an extraordinary general meeting
(“"EGM”) of the Company. The request (a) must
state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting, (b) must be signed by
the requisitionist(s), and (c) must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (the
“Registered Office”) at Suite 4901, 49/F., Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for the attention of the Company Secretary. If the
resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution,
the request should include the text of the resolution
and specify the intention to propose the resolution
as a special resolution. The request may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one

or more requisitionist(s).

The Directors must call an EGM within 21 days
from the date of the deposit of the valid request.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more
than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting. If the Directors fail to call the EGM

as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them
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representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the
EGM. The EGM must be called for a date not more
than 3 months after the date of the deposit of the
request. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) by reason of the failure of the
Directors duly to call an EGM shall be reimbursed

to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the
Board through the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. The
contact details of the Company Secretary are as

follows:

The Company Secretary

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited

Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk or
connieho@cheuknang.com.hk

Tel No.: (852) 2526 7799

Fax No.: (852) 2521 7728

Shareholders can also contact Computershare Hong
Kong Investors Services Limited, the share registrar
of the Company, if they have any enquiries about

their shareholdings.
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3.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at

General Meetings by Shareholders
Circulation of shareholders’ statement

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may request
the Company to circulate to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, (c) must identify the statement to
be circulated, and (d) must be received by the
Company at least 7 days before the meeting to

which it relates.

The expenses of circulating shareholders’ statement
need not be paid by the requisitionist(s) if the
meeting to which the requests relate is an annual
general meeting of the Company; and requests
sufficient to require the Company to circulate
the statement are received in time to enable the
Company to send a copy of the statement at
the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, such expenses must be paid by the
requisitionist(s); and there is deposited with or
tendered to the Company, not later than 7 days
before the meeting, a sum reasonable sufficient
to meet such expenses in doing do, unless the

Company resolves otherwise.
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Circulation of resolution for annual general meeting

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate, or at least
50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate, may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to receive notice of the annual general meeting,
notice of a resolution that is intended to be moved

at that meeting.

The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, (c) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given, and (d) must be received
by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before
the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is

given of that meeting.

The Company must send a copy of the notice of a
resolution at the Company’s own expense to each
shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual

general meeting.
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Nomination of a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, a shareholder can propose a person
for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting by giving the Company notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his willingness to be elected at least seven days
before the date of the general meeting. The period
for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of

such general meeting.

Circulation of Written Resolution

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders entitled to
vote on the resolution, may request the Company
to circulate a proposed written resolution to its
shareholders. The requisitionist(s) may also request
the Company to circulate with the proposed written
resolution a statement of not more than 1,000

words in respect of the resolution.

The request (a) must be signed by the requisitionist(s),
(b) must be deposited at the Registered Office for
the attention of the Company Secretary, and (c)
must identify the resolution and any statement to be

circulated.
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The Company must send a copy of the proposed
written resolution and statement (if any) at the
Company’s own expense to every shareholder not
more than 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the valid request. The Company must ensure
that the copy of proposed written resolution is
accompanied by guidance as to how to signify
agreement to the resolution and the day by which

the resolution must be passed.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company has arranged for the
renewal of an insurance policy on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the

Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditor of the Company, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, was approximately HK$650,000 for statutory
audit services rendered to the Group. The Group has
not engaged external auditor to perform non-audit

services.

The Group also appointed other external auditor for the
statutory audit purposes of certain overseas subsidiaries
and their remuneration for audit services rendered was
approximately HK$62,000.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Environmental Policy

Our commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in all business practices. The
Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with
the aims of saving energy, fully utilizing resources and

recycling wastes in daily office operation.

For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives
to reduce paper usage including usage of electronic
devices, and encouraging the use of websites and
online version of corporate communications. To reduce
the power consumption, lighting and equipment will be
turned off when not in use. Our Group is using office
equipment carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department which save the

energy in the offices.

Community Involvement

The Group takes an enthusiastic view of community
outreach and involvement. We encourage our
employees to spend more time with their families and
engage in volunteer work in their free time. The focus
areas of contribution have been poverty alleviation,
education, environmental recycling, and the arts. The
senior management of the Group endeavours to lead the
way through example by regularly contributing time,

supplies, and financial resources to charitable work.
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LEERBE
Corporate Governance Report

10.RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees,
customers and business associates are keys to our
sustainability journey. We strive to achieve corporate
sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality services for our customers,
collaborating with business partners and supporting our
community. The Company provides a fair workplace,
promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff,
together with competitive remuneration and benefits, as
well as a range of opportunities for career advancement
based on employees’ merits and performance. The
Company provides subsidy to staff for trainings to keep
them abreast of the latest developments in the market

and industry.
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The Directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates comprise property development, investment and
management in Hong Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic

of China and Malaysia.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to

the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 10
to 16 of this Annual Report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 59
to 66. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no important
event affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 30 June, 2018. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years’
Summary on page 2 of this Annual Report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 78 to 79.
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Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to
244,

An interim dividend of HK7.5 cents (2017: HK6.5 cents) per
share, totaling HK$42,091,000 was paid on 27 April 2018.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents (2017: HK13.5 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 29
November 2018, which together with the interim dividend
of HK7.5 cents (2017: HK6.5 cents) per share, makes a total
distribution of HK22.5 cents (2017: HK20.0 cents) per share
this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 27 December
2018.

Particulars of dividends proposed and paid during the year

are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 and page 119 to 120

respectively to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
There is no charitable donation made by the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2018.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and
property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements respectively.

PROPERTIES
Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on
pages 249 to 253.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note

27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution amounted to HK$97,429,000 (2017:
HK$243,553,000).

BONDS

Details of the bonds of the Group are set out in note 25 to

the financial statements.

CAPITALISED INTEREST

The amounts of interest capitalized by the Group during the

year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the
Group’s principal associates as at 30 June 2018 are set out

in note 18 to the financial statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The amounts of bank loans and other borrowings of the

Group at 30 June 2018 were as follows:

L
Group
¥ T T
HK$’000
IRITER Bank loans 1,213,299
EERR Advances from a director 128,782
1,342,081
BRI Repayment analysis:
RITE R Bank loans
—DPR—%F — within one year 1,203,416
—EE_F — in the second year -
—EE-ZFLF (BEEEMTF) — in the third to fifth years inclusive 9,883
1,213,299
BEIN Advances from a director
— | [EFE N - no fixed repayment terms 128,782
1,342,081

AEEZBBHREELERNA21.0% (=
T—+F :1235%) UIRTTERREME
ERUEBEEFETE - RITERLE
FRREEE  MFEELED 51/90.4%
(ZF—+F :86.7%) &9.6% (=T —+
F 1 13.3%) °

BHE_ZT-N\FRA=1TH AEBKXH
2B RBTFER RITERLEME
ERBRATMER  ARBRET -

The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 21.0%
(2017: 23.5%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and
other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of
bank loans and advances from a director over the Group’s
financial debts is 90.4% (2017: 86.7%) and 9.6% (2017:
13.3%) respectively.

Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans
and other borrowings were denominated in Ringgit
Malaysia, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2018.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
Ms. Chao Gigi (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Yung Philip

Ms. Ho Sau-Fun Connie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chao Howard
Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson
Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson, Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth
and Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Messrs
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Chao Gigi, Yung Philip, Ho Sau
Fun Connie and Chao Howard are also directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Mr. Lee Siu Cheung
Ms. Haw Suat Tin
Mr. Ahmad Zalani Bin Sa’ad (resigned on 28 March 2018)
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biography of Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,

were as follows:

(i) Company
B A=

Personal interest

sk B

Corporate interests

27,160,342 385,934,371

1,816,217 —

Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the above
represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company Limited
and Szehope Securities Company Limited, substantial

shareholders of the Company.
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Lee Ding Yue, Joseph

(ii) Subsidiaries

5PN 34 EEER
IR 2 Personal Corporate
Equity Interests Interests
A - 192 M&shares
Shares (1.92%)

The Company did not grant to the Directors, Chief Executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2018, the register of interests in shares
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that
the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There are no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, it is confirmed that
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float

under the Listing Rule.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Articles of Association of the Company.

STAFF

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed 90 staff. Staff
remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The
Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements and in the above under Directors’

interests in contracts.

SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 73.8% and 46.6%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 8.6% and 2.0%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Among the Group’s five largest suppliers, Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited, of which Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is a
director and beneficial owner, contributed to 46.6% of the

Group’s total purchases.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Director has interest in any business which is,
either directly or indirectly, competing with the business of

the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(1) On 16 November 2016, the Company had entered

into a Business Service Agreement with Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited (“CCAL”) and Cecil Chao Design
(Macau) Limited (“CCA Macau”) in respect of the
provision of architectural, engineering, design, project
management and related services by CCAL and CCA
Macau to the Group. The Agreement was entered for
a fixed term of two years from 1 July 2016 to 30 June
2018. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is a director and the
ultimate owner of CCAL and CCA Macau.

The maximum aggregate amounts payable by the Group
under the Business Service Agreement for the year
ended 30 June 2017 and for the year ended 30 June
2018 are not expected to exceed HK$22,010,000 and
HK$22,010,000 (“the Cap”) respectively.

The Business Service Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder including the annual caps
thereof was approved by the independent Shareholders
at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 January
2017 (the “EGM”). The voting is conducted by poll
and Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil and the parties acting in

concert are abstained from voting.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the aggregate
amount of service fees in respect of the services paid by
the Group under the Business Service Agreement was
HK$22,010,000, which is within the annual cap for the
said year of HK$22,010,000 as disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 10 January 2017 and approved
in the EGM.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions have been entered into by the Group (a)
in the ordinary course of business of the Group; (b)
on normal commercial terms; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

On 4 June 2018,
a Business Service Agreement with Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited (“CCAL”) and Cecil Chao Design
(Macau) Limited (“CCA Macau”) in respect of the

the Company had entered into

provision of architectural, engineering, design, project
management and related services by CCAL and CCA
Macau to the Group. The Agreement was entered for
a fixed term of two years from 1 July 2018 to 30 June
2020. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is a director and the
ultimate owner of CCAL and CCA Macau.

The maximum aggregate amounts payable by the Group
under the Business Service Agreement for the year
ended 30 June 2019 and for the year ended 30 June
2020 are not expected to exceed HK$24,150,000 and
HK$24,150,000 (“the Cap”) respectively.

Given that the relevant percentage ratios in respect
of the maximum annual value of the Services to be
provided by CCAL and CCA Macau under the New
Service Agreement, on annual basis, are more than
1% but less than 5%, the New Service Agreement is
subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

As at 30 June 2018, this Agreement has not yet effected.
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EEEHRESE
Report of the Directors

The auditor of the Company has performed review work in
respect of the continuing connected transactions under the
New Service Agreement for the year ended 30 June 2017
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has reported that nothing has come
to the Auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that
the said continuing connected transactions (a) have not
been approved by the Board; (b) were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (c) were not entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; or (d)
have exceed the annual cap as disclosed in the relevant
announcement of the Company. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in relation to the said continuing connected

transactions as disclosed above.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors’ and senior management arising
from corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2018 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, who will retire and a resolution to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will

be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Cecil Sze-Tsung Chao

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
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OVERVIEW

Cheuk Nang is pleased to present the second Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) report, which summarized our
ESG initiatives and accomplishments for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting in achieving green
operations for sustainable development. The management is
responsible for monitoring and managing ESG-related risks
and the effectiveness of the ESG management systems. In
order to determine the ESG reporting scopes, the Group has
engaged and discussed with various management personnel
and other key stakeholders to identify and assess relevant
ESG issues to the Group. The summary of material ESG

issues, which are covered in this report, are listed below.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

This report serves to provide details of the Group’s
ESG policies and initiatives of its business in property
development operations located in Hong Kong, which
has been prepared and complied under the “comply or
explain” provisions with reference to the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities under the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEx). The source of data in preparing the
ESG report is primarily based on our internal policies and
documents as well as information provided by various key

stakeholders.

The Group will continue to optimise its data collection
and reporting system of environmental management,
social responsibility and governance and gradually
expand the disclosure scope to improving the quality and

comprehensiveness of the report in the long term.
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Environmental

As part of the users of the natural resources, Cheuk
Nang acknowledges its responsibility to its people
and the environment. The Group not just aim to
report on carbon footprint, but also to take initiatives
to protect our environment. As a property developer
with limited projects during the Reporting Year, the
major environment impact included greenhouse gas
emission generated by office electricity, followed by
fuel consumption aroused from business trips. These
lead to the formation of the Group’s primary operation

initiatives - to reduce the emission of carbon dioxide.

Greenhouse (GHG) Emissions

Cheuk Nang’s vision focuses on eliminating excessive
usage of resources. During the reporting year, the
Group directly consumed 88,572 kg Carbon Dioxide

Equivalent Emissions.

—HtREE
BER (F3=)
Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent

BERBOCEZERHE) R

EEN-BEEBEROIE)
#HE2-FEBEREFNEN)

#E3 — HE A BE R (7% = k)

BERBAERK

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Emission (in kg)

Scope 1 — Direct Emissions (Vehicles) 72,064
Scope 2 — Indirect Emissions (Acquired

Electricity) 15,562

Scope 3 — Other Emissions (Business Trips) 946

88,572

Total GHG Emissions
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Waste reduction

In order to reduce the general wastes, other than setting
up recycling bins to collect the used paper products
and arranging recycle company to collect the toner
cartridges for recycling, “green office” concept is the
trend in the office. For example, encouraging staffs to
reduce the usage of one-off products and use clips to
replace glue and glue stick. Also promoting to reuse the
pen shafts by using refills instead of throwing away the
whole ballpoint pens. For the purpose of reducing the
recyclable wastes, Cheuk Nang also put in measures
to encourage staffs in reducing the waste production,
such as adopting an electronic system for filing and
documentation, promoting electronic communications
and “think before you print” attitude, and advising staffs
to print the documents in smaller font size and adjust
the print area before printing. Printers and computers
are default to print double-sided and make double-
sided copies. Electrical appliances are also selected
with energy efficiency labels, such as refrigerators,
if possible. During the reporting year, no hazardous
wastes were generated from the daily operations of the

Group.

The Group does not aware of any non-compliance with

relevant laws and regulations during the Reporting Year.

Social

Employees are always the biggest assets of Cheuk
Nang in order to deliver value-added services to our
customers. As a result, building a loyal and competent

workforce is vital to the long-term success of the Group.
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Employment

The Group promotes equal opportunity for employment
to all individuals, regardless of their ethnic group,
gender, religious affiliation, or other protected status
or classification; while promotions for our talents are
based on a fair semi-annual performance appraisal with
salary adjustment followed to motivate and raise the
moral of employees. We aim to provide a pleasant and

relaxing working environment to our people.

Dismissal of employees is executed in compliance with
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong or other local
laws and regulations. The Group have set a 5.5-day
work week arrangement with annual leaves and other
leaves provided allowing employees to have adequate
rest periods. The Group also provides medical benefits,
MPF schemes, social security and other benefits to
employees. Discrimination is not allowed within the
Group by reasons of age, sex, marital status, family
status, sexual orientation, disability, nationality or

religion, etc.

Health and safety

Cheuk Nang has purchased Employee’s Compensation
Insurance for the employees who are in charge of
site visit. The Group periodically inspects on fire
extinguishers and other fire prevention equipment
to ensure their effectiveness. To ensure employees’
healthiness, the Group particularly provides employees
who work outdoor with precautionary safety measures
against extreme summer heat and winter coldness
and also prepare noise cancelling ear plugs, insulated
boots and gloves, and antistatic clothing for staff who
are exposed to high risks of noise and high voltage.
The Group had held community events including
competition to emphasize the importance of striking a

balance between work and health.
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Development and training

Competency and qualification of staffs are the key to
represent the competitiveness of the Group. To maintain
a valuable reputation, Cheuk Nang circulates relevant
learning courses for employees to enhance their work
related skills and encourages employees to pursue
further study. The Group also provides orientation
training to new staff to sustain the proficiency of
high quality performance. Directors and Company
Secretaries had various trainings during the Reporting

Year as well.

Cheuk Nang will continuously encourage and provide
various trainings to meet the expectations and

necessities of employees.

Labour standards

Human rights are considered the fundamental rights
which should be valued the most. Background and
reference of staff members are checked during the
hiring to avoid any violation of laws and regulations.
Cheuk Nang fully complies with all respective laws and
regulations regarding the employment of child labour
and forced labour. Any employment of person under
15 and forced labour are strictly prohibited. The Group
places great emphasis on fairness and strictly complied
with the relevant laws and regulation which applicable

in Hong Kong.
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Supply chain management

Prior to being contractually binded by the agreement,
the Group conducts assessment based on myriads of
criteria, including the attitude towards the environment
and the society, any violations to the local and
national laws and regulations in relation to unethical
behaviour or other prohibited business practices, to
evaluate the quality as well as the moral standards of
the contractors. If any inconsistency is found between
requirements and their act, any cooperation will be
terminated until improvement is noted. Cheuk Nang
does not aware that any suppliers had any actual
and potential negative impact on business ethics,
environment and society, nor any non-compliance to

the local or national laws and regulations.

Product responsibility

Maximizing customers’ satisfaction is the top priority
of Cheuk Nang. From material procurement, material
testing, construction and completion, stringent quality
assurance and control procedures are applied from start
to end. For customers’ complaints and other issues, for
example, delay in hand off properties as well as repair
of properties related to properties sold, the Group
ensures follow-ups and communications between
customers and property management staff are in place

in order to enhance customers’ satisfaction.
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Anti-Corruption

Cheuk Nang values and upholds integrity, fairness,
transparency and accountability. The Group retains
an ethical working environment due to a sustainable
ethical standards in workplace. Expectation and trust
are placed towards employees’ conduct as the Group
has zero-tolerance of corruption and fraud. Employees
are expected not to receive any benefits, gifts or any
improper advantage during business contacts with

contractors, suppliers and customers.

Community investment

The Group believes that community involvement
could bring a positive return to both the society and
the business and therefore has carried out community
and voluntary activities during the Reporting Year.
For example, the “Faith in Love” mid-autumn festival
visiting event organized by Christian Family Service
Centre. The Group also held a Cheuk Nang cup as
a basketball competition with incentive reward to
enhance community’s bonding and strengthen the spirit

of teamwork among the community.

Cheuk Nang cooperated another meaningful event
with the Malaysia government to provide free
accommodation for Hong Kong delegates which
expressed a sustainable development of volunteerism in

the community.
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 112
to 248, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%E) AR28 | Annual Report 2018 £



RRE®

BPERBEEESAMAGRMN(EES
TR ETTER - WAIEZFERTAA
ENETEEARS BB ZEAM
R AFENE T B0 P IEE — PR -
REFESAMAERMNCERSED
BRESADCATEBE TR - BB
n EEE YERTTAFNEERE

BRFTEE
FREFFRERERMANFEZHE - R
RERNFHEEVBRERNEARSERN
FH FELFEHEEERMEBTBEEAHM
BHREARGABRSETRIEN - RMAT
SHELFTHREHREBFBHER -

BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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BRETEE(HE)
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Key Audit Matter

REYE )14 18

Valuation of investment properties

BRI A TFERKRAN T FE2. 5B R E14H

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RMANEFNMERZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Refer to Notes 2.5 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements

RZE—-NEXA=1+H  E£EHEAK
NABEEEMREYMELIET,095,577,000

AL EBREVELIABEEMNDNDS
1,131,543,000/8 T E 2 FEMZE A B R
REER ©

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had
investment properties measured at
fair value amounted to approximately
HK$7,095,577,000, and an increase in
fair value of investment properties of
approximately HK$1,131,543,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year then.

B RENENETRFEE
Our audit procedures in relation to the investment

properties included:

FHEMAREMENHERS  LHREEEMMGE
Bb St i At R MAEMRANDEMEBRE

reviewed the valuation reports of the investment
properties and discussed with the management
and valuers to assess the methodologies and key

assumptions adopted in the valuation;

FHAGEEMMERMBEX MG - W HEMMNIES
iR - FHAGEMNFEM - B MEMED - K&

obtained the valuers’ qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement and evaluated
the objectivity, independence and competence of

the valuers; and
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The estimate of fair values of the Group’s
investment properties were assessed
by the Group based on independent
valuations performed by qualified external
valuers, in which significant judgements
and estimation, including valuation
methodologies and key assumptions are
used. These investment properties were
valued on market value basis on their
existing development stage and usage, and
by reference to recent market transactions
for similar properties in the same location
and condition or by capitalisation of
future rental income which is estimated
by reference to comparable information as

available.

BFREE —RE - AARGEEEFSHMEME
FPT BB ZMFTMABTEERFENET
BEHMEZAIOEL -

We focused on this area because of
the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the property
valuations warrants specific audit focus and
attention on this area.

BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RMANEFNMERZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

— FHETEMEBRRRENE AL X
ERREELES  RMAYBHETE
SEEREMEMARK -

assumptions, such as capitalisation rate

TSR

IE AV PSEN

evaluated the methodologies used and the key

and market

rent, adopted in the valuation models based on

market data, entity-specific historical i

nformation,

and the nature and composition of the Group’s

investment properties.

ERNEiER  RABETEREE /&R
EIREMENRABENERHAB MG -

Based on the above, we obtained evidence to support

X #¥

=
=

the significant judgements and estimates used in the

valuation of investment properties.
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Key Audit Matter
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RMANEFNMERZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Assessment of the net realisable value of properties held for sale
BRR B TE KA IRIBN L E2. 7B R E 198

Refer to Notes 2.7 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

RZZE-NFRA=+RH  EXEHERH
)% 493%1,994,277,000/8 7T

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had
properties held for sale amounting to
approximately HK$1,994,277,000.

REGFEMERKAMA B FERE 28
REYR - Al 2B FERKRMGTEEERR
EAE TR AN L EMEMME LKA
AR FEHAEE2RE BERINEHERD
HETHNHERE - EXARFLTEEDEDN
A ERFEMNERHA B MG - B ARG
WRSHEFINEFREE - EEEERY
REBEE-FT-N\FAA=ZTHILEFENFE
MERELRE -
Properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property. The net realisable value
was determined by the Group with reference
to the valuation performed by independent
Given the
significant judgment and estimates used

qualified external valuers.

in assessing the net realisable value of
properties held for sale, the assessment of
such is considered significant to our audit.
Management concluded no impairment on
the properties held for sale was recognised
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

BMEFEMENETEFEE
Our audit procedures in relation to properties held for
sale included:

— AHAMERES - I EE IR E MG EME
TEYFRGEEFRBOIEMER

Tafam o BA

— reviewed the valuation report and held discussions

with management and the valuers to understand
the methodologies and assumptions adopted in the

valuation of the properties; and

— FHEGEERNERMERME  WHEEBPINER
firtt - A EMNFEE - B EMEEN

— obtained the valuers’ qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement and evaluated
the objectivity, independence and competence of

the valuers;

— HAERERNTEARERTSEE KEERE
SEEUARAEERRELEENEE MEKDNHER
ARRANBERKRRK  WEAMEERMHSHEE -

— evaluated the methodologies used and the key
assumptions, such as capitalisation rate and market
rent, adopted in the valuation models based on
market data, entity-specific historical information,
and the nature and composition of the Group’s

investment properties.

BMEREEBHFEEFEDEAERFENFHEE
RAEBBEOF -

We found that the management’s assessment of the net
realisable value of properties held for sale is supported

by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

A 0 7 7 1

Provision for PRC taxes

BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RN EFNMERZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ARG A SRR REN G E2. 1878 « F101E K E2618

Refer to Notes 2.18, 10 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

EEBEPRENEHESRREZRFTHNSR
R BRELHIEEHRNEEFREHR -

The Group’s property development business
in the PRC is subject to taxes including land

appreciation tax and corporate income tax.

MUPERFEEEBRETBEABERERR
EMREBRABEEDN -HR BEEE®HK
HARRSEEETE R LD SRNF B ER
BHIEEANHEMATBRERE AT HEEES
BRER B EBR AR o

The taxes are determined based on
management’s best estimates according to
the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. Significant
management judgement is required to
determining the appropriate amount of
potential tax provisions as the Group has not
finalised the relevant tax returns for certain
completed property development projects
with the relevant tax authority.
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BPERPEHEENEFEFBE

Our audit procedures in relation to provision for PRC

taxes included:

— EREMNFHE T B E AR NS B AR TR fEE

#

— understood and evaluated the estimates made by

the management in determining the tax provisions;

and

— BREMORBER AT EHBREEOERE

FEOMM TR -

— involved our tax specialists to assess the accuracy,
adequacy and completeness of the tax provisions.

AR EAER - HMAEBRREZTENAEENRES

REEEYHERWRERGE -

Based on the above, we found that the available
evidences and calculation properly support
management’s estimates for provision for PRC taxes.

105
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B E TS H () KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
BREETEE RMNESNAEERZSE

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
o G 7 7% A (4R

Provision for PRC taxes (Continued)

B RATL IS MBI I RE(F MR E MR EE - AT B
BUGAMBRRPCENREREBEENE
N2

Change in assumptions about the decision
that might be taken by the relevant tax
authority can materially impact the level
of provisions recorded in the consolidated

financial statements.

HMREBEBENMGEFMAE  RAFEINE—R
B2 HETAEENTENYEERESK
XML HIBER R EEMSHEHE -

We focused on this area because of
the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the amount of land
appreciation tax and corporate income
tax to be paid by the Group’s property

development business in the PRC.
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BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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W SLAZ WD 3R & B
Independent Auditor’'s Report

ESHGESUBRRZEME (FE)

EREFEAVHRAE  EFRENE &
SEFBELENRN  TEERBERTH
BESELEEENER  UAREARE
RESETER BRIEFEEHK A
EERIFILLE  KHBEHETCERENE
(WIS

EFAERFZEENHH TRERTE
E BERENYBREBERENAET-

BB S MR E R AR
BfE

RPNBER  RYUHGRAMBEBRREEBRES T
FERNRFFRERMEBHERNERR
MERGAERE  YHABRERMERLLN
RBEDIRE - R LRBEE R RGHI
FA0SIRNRE - EMEEKEWME - it
ASN - P IRE A AIEETAE -
P TIRARENARET  HEFRNEEAL
BEIAEEREE-

BERBEKFHRE EBETRERIR
RIFEEFENETHNERS  EX—E
R $EFR PRI T L B AR RE 3R 3R o BE AR PR AL 7]
A EFFRERREIE - tnRGEFAHE M
ERRERAERAEZESREYBERRE
A & KRB B 755 ¥R 3R BT AR H VAR OER E - R
BRNERBE AT RARIEERX -

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ ((8) §RAF |

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control.

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12,

28 Hennessy Road,

Wanchai

Hong Kong

24 September 2018

Chan Tze Kit

Practising Certificate No.: P05707
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Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss

BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

L'ON
BEMAAR

EF
H A

BREMERIABEZES

\

%

THEHR
B 75 B AR

BR Bt A1 32 A
PRS T 3 h

TFEERFESEERN

THALTEBEERFE

mA

ZAN/NCIES TN

FEIE R b =

ARBFEBEAMERFE
BN ZBREFR

#E

ENARRFAEARE

EARIAK

A EEF AR
SRAEREE
DR BEHEDY

&2

Mt
Notes

Revenue 5
Direct costs
Gross profit
Other income 7
Changes in fair value of

investment properties 14
Changes in fair value of financial

assets and liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss
Administrative expenses
Finance costs 8
Profit before income tax 9
Income tax expense 10
Profit for the year
Profit for the year

attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Earnings per share for profit

attributable to the owners of

the Company during the year
Basic 12
Diluted 12

= =t
2018 2017
T#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
68,350 1,682,786
(23,731) (432,394)
44,619 1,250,392
49,575 17,115
1,131,543 74,213
(773) 4,253
(144,410) (125,712)
(31,802) (22,963)
1,048,752 1,197,298
(437,145) (747,945)
611,607 449,353
606,619 440,660
4,988 8,693
611,607 449,353
HK$1.10 HK$0.86
HK$1.10 HK$0.85

O & ANEEIENS Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company are

set out in Note 11.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

FET TAETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit for the year 611,607 449,353

Other comprehensive income/
(expenses) for the year, net of tax
Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations 118,381 (35,742)
Change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets (14,778) 2,242

Iltems that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of land and
buildings held for own use 7,392 (116)
Income tax relating to components
of other comprehensive income (1,220) 19

Other comprehensive income/
(expenses) for the year, net of tax 109,775 (33,597)

Total comprehensive income
for the year 721,382 415,756

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 716,394 407,063
Non-controlling interests 4,988 8,693
721,382 415,756
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZF—/\FXA=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

BEERERE
FRBEE
SEME

M WERERE
Hip3Eneh & &
HemEE
EEFIRE E

RBEE
BRPHEDE

BEERZHFEME
BAfBEFABRZ
TREE
JEWE 5 Bk N B At
JFE UK Bl K

75t 5K 3] 47
RITRENMRE

REBEE

H Al & A AR 3K

JEAST FE4E AR IR 5RIA
JE A B3 X B IR

BEEEE
JE A B TR

MEERABRE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current asset

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Properties under development
for sale

Completed properties for sale

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Amount due to a
related company

Interest-bearing borrowings

Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

1 &2

Notes

14
15
16
17
26

19
19

20
21

22

23
24

24
25

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%E) AR28 | Annual Report 2018 £

—EB-N\F T —LtF
2018 2017
FET TAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
7,095,577 5,644,854
37,299 31,199
950 950
168,129 132,755
12,951 11,732
7,314,906 5,821,490
1,489,527 1,422,132
504,750 671,441
7,128 15,143
44,451 30,221

= 68
724,022 913,706
2,769,878 3,052,711
344,989 363,488
239,990 239,990
1,452 1,468
1,203,416 489,791
426,595 420,818
2,216,442 1,515,555
553,436 1,537,156
7,868,342 7,358,646




FRBEE
BREER

H fth J& A R K
B8R
EEHIARE

BEEFE
RE =
(LN
&1

ARBFEABEES

IR ER

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Other payables

Advances from a director
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to the
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

HtE

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

EF

Director

o & B 15 R R R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZF—/\FA=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

—EB-N\F T —LtF
2018 2017
B it T#ET TAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
25 9,883 654,690
23 = 3,970
29(a) 128,782 175,636
26 1,187,248 758,646
1,325,913 1,592,942
6,542,429 5,765,704
27 2,221,269 2,050,018
4,158,932 3,558,446
6,380,201 5,608,464
162,228 157,240
6,542,429 5,765,704
H ik 4
Yung Philip
oo
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Dividend income
Interest income
Finance costs
Changes in fair value of
investment properties
Gain on disposal of
held-to-maturity financial assets
Gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Provision for litigations
Exchange difference

Operating (loss)/profit before working
capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in properties

held for sale
(Increase)/Decrease in trade
and other receivables
Decrease in other payables
Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

Finance costs paid

Profits tax paid

Profits tax refund

Net cash used in operating activities
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—E2-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET FATT

HK$’000 HK$’000

1,048,752 1,197,298
1,832 1,853
(250) (559)
(24,832) (13,004)
31,802 22,963

(1,131,543) (74,213)
(527) (311)
2,612) (2,208)

773 (4,253)
67,582 102,843
(78,700) 16,548
(87,723) 1,246,957
(46,954) 226,754
(14,674) 54,429
(84,975) (1,363,668)
9,854 11,288
(224,472) 175,760
(21,740) (31,332)
(1,009) (289,445)

68 -
(247,153) (145,017)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividend income

Interest received

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Additions of investment properties

New fixed deposits with original
maturity of over three months
replacement of

Release of fixed deposits with
original maturity of over three
months placement of

New pledged bank balances

Release of pledged bank balances

Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of held
to maturity financial assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of share capital
Dividends paid
New bank and other loans raised
Repayment of bank loan
(Decrease)/Increase in advances
from a director
Repayment of amount due to
a related company

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

—E2-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
THET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
221 499
25,214 9,747
(485) (380)
(16,457) (68,795)
(195,632) -
32,772 632
(7,106) (1,633)
1,786 310
(65,870) (112,387)
16,245 10,336
(209,312) (161,671)
81,548 60,003
(26,205) (11,064)
687,813 382,335
(627,748) (308,758)
(46,854) 50,677
(16) (55)
68,538 173,138
(387,927) (133,550)
876,257 992,224
30,063 17,583
518,393 876,257
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

BITHEERASEEY Analysis of the balances of
HERD AT cash and cash equivalents
iR a BRI mE Bank balances and cash as stated
2IZRITEFRRE in consolidated statement of
financial position
o R = EARE 2 Less: Fixed deposits with original
E B7F maturity of over three months
B B EHIRITETF Less: Pledged bank balances
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2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
724,022 913,706
(195,632) (32,772)
(9,997) (4,677)
518,393 876,257
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ALARE ARG
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
THE
% tREE
Rx  aERR EfEE  EMBE  REEN RE FERES L 35
Available-
for-sale
financial
Property assets Non-
Share  Exchange revaluation  revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
Thr TiET Thxr TR Thx TR TEx TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
(Wio7a)
(Note 27(a))
Balance at 1 July 2016 1,910,644 (163,489) 19,652 - 3385656 5,152,463 148,547 5,301,010
Profit for the year - - - - 440,660 440,660 8,693 449,353
Other comprehensive income
for the year
Exchange loss on translation of
financial statements of foreign
operations - (35,742) - - - (35,742) - (35,742)
Change in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets - - - 2,242 - 2,242 - 2,242
Deficit on revaluation of land
and building - - (116) - - (116) - (116)
Income tax relating to
components of other
comprehensive income - - 19 - - 19 - 19
Total comprehensive (expenses)/
income for the year - (35,742) (97) 2,42 440,060 407,003 8,093 415,756
2016 final dividend approved and
paid (Note 11) - - - - (56,392) (56,392) - (56,392)
2017 interim dividend approved
and paid (Note 11) - - - - (34,044) (34,044) - (34,044)
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip dividend
scheme 79371 - - - - 79,371 - 79,371
By exercise of warrants 60,003 - - - - 60,003 - 60,003
Balance at 30 June 2017 2,050,018 (199,231) 19,555 2242 3735880 5,008,464 157,240 5,765,704
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BREBINEEXRAHER
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HERETERRS
EpzEkann ABNFER

ERRE (%) /RALE

ERERBHN-E—+&
KRS )

BHEREAM-Z-NE
mERE(WE)

BIRLG -
RENRREHE
TERRES

ZE-NFARZTRER

* WRERERELEZINERAFBMRARS *
REE 2 [#184,158,932,0008 7T (R =F

Balance at 1 July 2017

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year
Exchange gain on translation
of financial statements of
foreign operations
Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
financial assets
Surplus on revaluation of
land and building
Income tax relating to
components of other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (expenses)/
income for the year

2017 final dividend approved
and paid (Note 11)

2018 interim dividend approved
and paid (Note 11)

Issue of share capital:

Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme

By exercise of warrants

Balance at 30 June 2018

—+4F : 3,558,446,000/8 7C) °

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =4t (£8) ARAR

ARARA NGRS

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
\ e

g HEE

Rx  AERf EfER EMEE  REEN RE FERESR QiEn
Available-
for-sale
financial
Property assets Non-

Share  Exchange revaluation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
TR TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(H#27)
(Note 27(a))

2050018 (19231) 19,555 2242 3735880 5608464 157,240 5,765,704

= = - - 606,619 606,619 4,988 611,607

- 11838 - - - 118381 - 118381

- - - (14,778) - (14,778) - (14,778)

- - 7,392 - - 7,392 - 7,392

- - (1,220) - - (1,220) - (1,220)

- 118381 6172 (14778 606,619 716,39 4988 721382

. . . Sma) (381 - B

. - - S @00 (42,0 S (@0

89,703 - - - - 89,703 - 89,703

81,548 . . . - 1548 - B8

2,221,269 (80,850) 25,727 (12,536) 4,226,591 6,380,201 162,228 6,542,429

consolidated statement of financial position.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

GENERAL INFORMATION
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The Group is principally engaged in property
development and investment and provision of property

management and related services.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 24 September 2018.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
on pages 107 to 244 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any,

are disclosed in Note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties, financial instruments classified as
available-for-sale and at fair value through profit
or loss, and land and building classified under
property, plant and equipment, which are stated
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully

described in the accounting policies below.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

[t should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other

parties) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statement of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the equity holders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
respectively for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interest in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

2. ESTHTHERBE (FE)

2.2 GLERE(E)
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred

directly to retained earnings).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also

includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s

profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately

in the exchange reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the accumulated exchange
differences in respect of that operation attributable
to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.
Any exchange differences that have previously
been attributed to non-controlling interests are
derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit

or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e., no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e., of
associates or joint venture not involving a change
of accounting basis), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to

profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon (where the fair value of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease) are stated at revalued amounts,
being fair value at the date of revaluation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent impairment losses. Fair value is
determined in appraisals by external professional
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at
the reporting date. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Any surplus arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and is accumulated in the property
revaluation reserve in equity, unless the carrying
amount of that asset has previously suffered a
revaluation decrease. To the extent that any
decrease has previously been recognised in profit
or loss, a revaluation increase is credited to profit
or loss with the remaining part of the increase
dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of land and
buildings arising on revaluations is recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the property revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining

decrease is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost or revalued amounts
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

T BT 2% Land and building 2%
RFA - BEREFE 10% Furniture, fittings and office 10%
R equipment

YA B & B 20% Motor vehicles and accessories 20%
MEWMEEE 33%3k A8 Leasehold improvement 33% or over the
sHE A F R remaining term

(LAE 2 of the lease, if

BHEYSE:D) shorter

BEZFRER  PEHIERAE
REMerNsEEE RETTRE R

AR

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained profits on the disposal of land and building

and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a

finance lease.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value.
Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers, with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised at
the reporting date reflect the prevailing market

conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.

For a transfer from completed properties for sale
to investment property that will be carried at fair
value, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying

amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets other than interests in subsidiaries are set out
below. Financial assets of the Group are classified
into held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale

financial assets and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable

transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the

financial asset.

(i) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss if the following criteria are met:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on

them on a different basis; or

— the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key

management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately

recorded.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses any
data from observable market. Fair value gain or
loss does not include any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets. Dividend and
interest income is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies in Note 2.14 to these

consolidated financial statements.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified as

available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve in
equity, except for impairment losses (see the
policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial
asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the reporting
date. The change in fair value attributable to
translation differences that result from a change
in amortised cost of the asset is recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes are recognised

in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each reporting date

subsequent to initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
of individual financial assets includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

— Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-

organisation;

— Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor;

—  The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;

and

— A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in

which the impairment occurs.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or

loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair
value

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as an impairment loss. That amount
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair
value (Continued)
Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale and
stated at fair value are not recognised in the
profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses of financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale include completed

properties for sale and properties under

development for sale and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

(i)

(i)

Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.17).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs

to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Properties held for sale (Continued)
(i) Completed properties for sale (Continued)

Recognition of costs (including borrowing cost)
in the carrying amount of an item of completed
properties for sale ceases when the item is in
the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended

by management.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
loans and bond, other payables and advances from
related parties (including amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to a related
company and advances from a director). They are
included in line items in the statement of financial
position as interest-bearing borrowings under
current or non-current liabilities, other payables or
separately shown on the face of the statement of

financial position, respectively.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2.17).
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2. TESHEERBE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (Continued)
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A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting date.

Other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, amount due to a related company

and advances from a director

Other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, amount due to a related company
and advances from a director are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on

initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where

appropriate.
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2. FEEFHEBE (K) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
211 R 2.11 Leases
EASBEEFE AL TERE An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
— (A Z AR ERE@ESTE series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
BENFEIEEE AR — R385k Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
FoZBEEBE-BERSH— R right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
R5)RHPFABER RS —EHE period of time in return for a payment of a series of
4 RET ZEKIIBELZHENNA payments. Such a determination is made based on
AmrE  TEEEZTHELH an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
KHVETER - and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

(i) BEMETAEERZ 7L (i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
EHRAEELNHEREABEE Assets that are held by the Group under leases
ERREB M ER R EGE 2@ which transfer to the Group substantially
WD EETAEENE DA all the risks and rewards of ownership are
RAMBHERF - EREH classified as being held under finance leases.
Rl REEE BRI EE Leases which do not transfer substantially
FAREBE AW DB A AL E all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
BEERA - MENIIRIN Group are classified as operating leases, with

the following exceptions:

— URLEEZAEVERSS —  property held under operating leases that
BREMENTEEDER would otherwise meet the definition of
BB EYFEREEIRE an investment property is classified as
MER B RRKEY an investment property on a property-
¥ BUMBHEESTAA by-property basis and, if classified as
Bk & investment property, is accounted for as if

held under a finance lease; and
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2. ESTHTHERBE (FE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Leases (Continued)
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(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

(Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon, at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease (see Note 2.4). For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net

lease payments made.

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental

income.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Leases (Continued)

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor (Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the

aggregate net lease payments receivable.

2.12 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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2. TESHEERBE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2N2B - EEBREREEE (E) 2.12 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
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Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

213 BRAR 2.13 Share capital

TBRD DB AED  RARRE
BITHRE  EMRERERETT
(R ERIARRAFT ST A &) FAE/E
HEABOAERXSEME - AERE
mRXHMERELENKANSR -

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is recognised at the amount of consideration
of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the

equity transaction.

214 R ER 2.14 Revenue recognition

WABRAEEEFKLBIEPH
&R MRS B 2 W Sk B W B R

NAEE-

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of the

Group’s activities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following basis:

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised when the legal title has been
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides
with the time upon signing of the sale and purchase
agreement or the issue of an occupation permit
by the relevant government authorities, whichever
is the later. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of

financial position under other payables.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
in the period in which the properties are let out and

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis

using the effective interest method.

Estate management income is recognised in the

period when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is

established.
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2. ESTHTHERBE (FE)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset, other financial assets and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing. All
such assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying

amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating

unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the assets
in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value

in use, if determinable.
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2. TESHEERBE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
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An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

2.16 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through several defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a

percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required
to contribute 10% of its payroll costs to the central

pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions

payable.
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2. ESTHTHERBE (FE)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused

tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For investment property measured using the fair
value model in accordance with the accounting
policy above, the measurement of the related
deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amount
of the investment property entirely through sale,
unless the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

2. ESTHTHERBE (FE)

218 FiSBiE R ()

HWERFEE REE

(a) AREELELARIITR ZHE
DA HHDHER TR 0 &

(b) FTHEIUFBEEERZ MK
EEEMNRBINEE-

RNEEE 2 FELEN IR E B SIELET
HEERFE RBE

(a) REREAELAAITRZE
NG AN BT TR & B Y 35 AN HA AR
HEE K

(b) [A)— BT 755 1 B8 P U B R R
ERBEENMBELERAREZ
AT 15 51

() A—ERHER =X

(il TRRMERBITELOFR
AR NAPHREAER
BE SEHEEENR
BIZfMaE &8 —fX
REARE - IREFR BB E
BEMEANCTEREAN
XA sk B .

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(it) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

Property sales;

—  Property rental;

—  Estate management; and

—  Others - financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss.

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arm’s length prices.
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2. TESHEERBE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 7 EB &R & (&) 2.19 Segment reporting (Continued)
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The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that finance
costs, income tax, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets but investments
in other financial assets (including held-to-maturity
debt securities), deferred tax assets and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to

the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment. These include taxation and

certain borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to

the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group and the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close family members of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods

beginning or after 1 July 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July
2017:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual Improvements  Entities

to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior

periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows:

Disclosure Initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosure
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. A reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances of liabilities arising from
financing activities is set out in Note 30. Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments, the
Group has not disclosed comparative information for
the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure
in Note 30, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not early adopted
the following new and amended HKFRSs which are
relevant to the Group’s operations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture!

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlements?

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Transfers of Investment Property!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.

4 Effective date not yet determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and amended HKFRSs upon
initial application. Currently it has been considered that
the adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position,

except for the following.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, calculation of
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
and the classification of financial liabilities. The Group
has decided not to adopt HKFRS 9 until it becomes
mandatory on 1 January 2018. The Group plans to use
the exemption from restating comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments against
the opening balance of equity at 1 July 2018. Expected
impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements are as follows:
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HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
cost, FVTPL and FVTOCI will not be significantly
affected in respect of the accounting treatment
upon adoption of HKFRS 9, except for held-to-
maturity debt securities which will be classified
from measured as amortised costs under HKAS 39
to FVTOCI under HKFRS 9.
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HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group has assessed that the
change in policy is not likely to have significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 and the related clarification to HKFRS
15 (hereinafter referred to as “HKFRS 15”) presents
new requirements for the recognition of revenue,
replacing HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, and several revenue-related Interpretations.
HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model
that applies to contracts with customers and two
approaches to recognising revenue; at a point in time
or overtime. The model features a contract-based five-
step analysis of transactions to determine whether, how

much and when revenue is recognised.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Based on the assessment
completed to date, the Group has identified the

following areas which are expected to be affected.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSS (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in Note 2.14. Currently, revenue from sale of goods
is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of

ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which
control of the promised good or service is regarded as

being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s

performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced;

(iii) When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in

determining when transfer of control occurs.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSS (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

Currently, the Group’s property development activities
are carried out in Hong Kong, PRC, Malaysia and
Macau. Taking into account the contract terms, the
Group'’s business practice and the legal and regulatory
environment of Hong Kong, PRC, Malaysia and Macau,
the Group has assessed that its property sales contracts
will not meet the criteria for recognising revenue over
time and therefore revenue from property sales will
continue to be recognised at a point in time. Currently,
the Group recognises revenue from property sales
upon the later of the signing of the sale and purchase
agreement or the issue of an occupation permit by
the relevant government authorities, which is taken
to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the property have been transferred to
the customer. The Group has assessed that under the
transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15 revenue from
property sales will generally be recognised upon the
later of the signing of the sale and purchase agreement
applications made by customers for house mortgage
approved by banks, which is the point in time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of property
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. This may result in revenue being

recognised later than at present.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSS (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018. The Group has started to assess
the impact of HKFRS 15 and expects to apply HKFRS
15, in accordance with modified retrospective approach
under which the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial application
(i.,e. 1 July 2018). The directors do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
but will result in more disclosures to be made in the

consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 “Leases”
(“HKAS 17”) and three related Interpretations.

As disclosed in Note 2.11, currently the Group
classifies leases into operating leases and accounts for
the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some

leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSS (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease, the lessee
will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee would recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a

systematic basis over the lease term.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSS (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases of buildings which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. As disclosed in Note 33, as at 30 June
2018, the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
HK$9,403,000 for buildings, the majority of which
is payable between 1 and 2 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to
be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis
to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities
arising from operating lease commitments on adoption
of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability
of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases
entered into or terminated between now and the
initial date of adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of

discounting.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSS (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen,
the Group will apply the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on
or after the date of initial application. If the practical
expedient is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess
all of its decisions about which existing contracts are,
or contain, leases, using the new definition. Depending
on whether the Group elects to adopt HKFRS 16
retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at the date of initial
application, the Group may or may not need to restate
comparative information for any changes in accounting

resulting from the reassessment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below:
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar property in similar
location and condition and subject to lease and other
contracts. In making its judgement, the Group considers

information from a variety of sources including:

(i) the floor areas of the properties with respect
to the consideration to the receivable from the

independent and identified buyer;

(ii) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to

reflect those differences;

(iii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the

transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iv) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and using discount rate that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and

timing of the cash flows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of properties (Continued)

The Group’s properties have been valued individually,
on market value basis, which conforms to The
Hong Kong Institute of Survey Valuation Standards.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
management of the Group has considered the highest
and best use of the properties. The carrying amount of
the investment properties and land and buildings as at
30 June 2018 are approximately HK$7,095,577,000 and
HK$34,170,000 respectively (2017: HK$5,644,854,000
and HK$27,324,000 respectively). Details of the fair

value information are set out in Notes 14 and 15.

Allowance for properties under development for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market value
(i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
selling expenses less estimated costs to completion of
the properties). An allowance is made if the estimated
market value is less than the carrying amount. If the
actual market value on properties under development
for sale is less than expected as a result of change in
market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material provision for
impairment losses may result. The carrying amount
of the properties under development for sale as at 30
June 2018 is approximately HK$1,489,527,000 (2017:
HK$1,422,132,000). No impairment loss on properties
under development for sale have been written down to
net realisable value during the year ended 30 June 2018
(2017: Nil).
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for completed properties for sale

Management exercises its judgment in making
allowance for completed properties for sale with
reference to the existing market environment and
the estimated market value of the properties, i.e. the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling
expenses. A specific allowance for completed properties
for sale is made if the estimate market value of the
property is lower than its carrying amount. If the actual
market values of the completed properties for sale
less than expected, as a result of change in market
condition, material provision for impairment losses may
result. The carrying amount of the completed properties
as at 30 June 2018 is approximately HK$504,750,000
(2017: HK$671,441,000). No completed properties for
sale have been written down to net realisable value
during the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

Accounting for income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
PRC, Malaysia and Macau. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Significant management judgement is
required in determining the provision of income taxes.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current tax and deferred tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is

made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

In measuring the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties measured at fair value, management of the
Group have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using the fair value model were recovered
entirely through sales was not rebutted. Deferred tax
has been provided at tax rates that are expected to
apply upon sales of the investment properties held by
the subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia and the PRC.

For the properties in the PRC, the tax expenses on
changes in fair value of investment properties and
properties sales are recognised taking into account the
land appreciation tax and enterprise income tax payable
upon sales of those properties in the PRC. The land
appreciation tax is determined based on management’s
best estimates according to the requirements set forth in
the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations and provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions including land costs,
borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures. As at 30 June 2018, deferred tax liabilities
in relation to the fair value changes of investment
properties of approximately HK$1,187,248,000 (2017:
HK$758,646,000) have been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30

June 2018, as set out in Note 26.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

In addition, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$40,089,000 (2017: HK$38,818,000) in relation
to tax losses have been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2018, as detailed in Note 26. The recognition
of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note
1 to these consolidated financial statements. Revenue
from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

the year is as follows:

—E-N\F —E—+tF

2018 2017

FERT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

MEEE Properties sales 21,948 1,638,797
& B A Gross rental income 42,727 42,166
IEXREN PN Estate management income 3,675 1,823
68,350 1,682,786
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers, have identified the Group’s
operating segments as further described in Note 2.20.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic

decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results.

2018

Revenue
From external customers
From other segments

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

Other information:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Decrease in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred tax
assets) during the year

BELE  wEfE  NREE Hf 2B
Properties  Properties Estate

sales rental management Others Total
TiEn TiEn FiEn FiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,948 42,727 3,675 - 68350
- 840 17,658 - 18,498

21,948 43,567 21,333 - 86,848
18,331 1,153,521 2,478 2,631 1,176,961

66 1,312 454 - 1,832
14,978 9,842 12 24,832
3,668 27,083 - - 30,751
8,085 429,060 - - 7145

- 1,131,543 - - 1,131,543
- = - (773) (773)
2,810,436 6,322,117 4,796 7128 9144477
204,340 264,090 850 - 469,280
99 203,731 140 - 203,970
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2017

Revenue
From external customers
From other segments

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

Other information:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense/(credit)
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Increase in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred tax
assets) during the year

WELE  EEE  WEER it #E
Properties  Properties Estate
sales rental management Others Total
TR TR Thr Thr TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,638,797 42,166 1,823 - 1,682,786
- 840 17,820 - 18,660
1,638,797 43,006 19,643 - 1,701,446
1,225,470 96,717 565 7,330 1,330,082
60 1,291 502 - 1,853
7,535 5,467 2 - 13,004
- 22,228 - - 22,228
783,494 (35,549) - - 747,945
- 74213 - - 74,213
- - - 4,253 4,253
2,895,267 4,977,441 3,319 15,143 7,891,170
323,722 264,098 448 - 608,268
54 68,486 104 - 08,044
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6. TEER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

178

REEZ EED W RMEREE 2 E
ENBERFHRBEREMBHREROT

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments

reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as

presented in the consolidated financial statements as

follows:

—E-NF —E—+tF

2018 2017

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

J& 3 & 9 JB UL Reportable segment revenue 86,848 1,701,446
N = Elimination of inter segment revenue (18,498) (18,660)
SERKA Revenue of the Group 68,350 1,682,786
FE TRE o 56 T Reportable segment profit 1,176,961 1,330,082
PN /NI DN Unallocated corporate income 46,713 14,037
RAOERARZH Unallocated corporate expenses (143,120) (123,858)
81 755 A 7R Finance costs (31,802) (22,963)
£ F %5 BT A Profit before income tax of the Group 1,048,752 1,197,298
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segment assets
Tax recoverable
Other corporate assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets of the Group

Reportable segment liabilities
Tax payable
Other corporate liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities of the Group

—E—NEF —F—+F
2018 2017
FHET FATT
HK$/000 HK$'000
9,144,477 7,891,170
- 68

927,356 971,231
12,951 11,732
10,084,784 8,874,201
469,280 608,268
426,595 420,818
1,459,232 1,320,765
1,187,248 758,646
3,542,355 3,108,497
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following

geographical areas:

HREF W
Revenue from FRBEE
external customers Non-current assets
BN\ —T—+tF ZEB-NF "T+F
2018 2017 2018 2017
THET TET TEx TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F&(EEH) Hong Kong (domicile) 43,706 43,089 3,222,451 4,154,872
FEARKEME The People’s Republic of China
(ME]) (“PRC") 23,481 1,638,847 2,336,017 178
R Macau - - 1,232,186 1,197,829
ERpan Malaysia 1,163 850 343,172 324,124
68,350 1,682,786 7,133,826 5,677,003

BEPMMERIDIRIEZRG 2 REXE
M2 B SERE - ERBEE
AL B EMEM IR R -

RABR/IREERAT  AEB 2T 8
EEMEAETL SREFBMBRE
HERBSREELHLER - BERER
JE JE b

REBFARAWAEE —SILEPHR
PWATEIZE10%IA L -

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the

assets.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal place of the Group’s operation is
Hong Kong. For the purpose of segment information
disclosures under HKFRS 8, the Group regarded Hong

Kong as its place of domicile.

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted to 10% or more for the Group’s

revenue for the year.
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7. OTHER INCOME, NET

Dividend income from listed equity
investments
Gain on disposal of financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity
investments

Interest income

Net exchange gain

Sundry income

—E-N\F —ELF
2018 2017
F#ET FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
250 559
2,612 2,208
527 311
24,832 13,004
19,398 -
1,956 1,033
49,575 17,115
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8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest charges on:
Bank loans and overdrafts
Advances from a director
(Note 29(a))
Other payable
(Note 23)
Bond (Note 25)

Other incidental borrowings costs

Total finance costs
Less: Interest capitalised into
— Properties under development

for sale (Note)

—E-N\F —ELF
2018 2017
FExT FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
28,425 20,285
10,429 11,032
942 1,734

734 600
4,324 3,358
44,854 37,009
(13,052) (14,046)
31,802 22,963

from 1.084% to 1.939%).
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9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

GEMBHRETMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging the

following:

Operating lease charges —
Buildings
Staff costs (include directors’
emoluments) (Note 13.1)
Salaries, wages and other
benefits
Contribution to defined

contribution plans

Auditor’s remuneration
Current year

Prior year under-provision

Depreciation

Direct outgoings in respect of

investment properties that

generate rental income

Direct outgoings in respect of

investment properties that did

not generate rental income

Net exchange loss

—E-N\F —EB—+F
2018 2017
F#&ExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,521 4,525
24,067 22,336
873 873
24,940 23,209
712 722

12 10

724 732
1,832 1,853
13,747 12,790
1,090 1,128

- 5,124
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

10. Fr &8l < 10.
HRAKE AR 2B EFREREEER
RUABHBE—_FT-N\FANA=1H
LEEFEEZERBGEN - AR BESGRA
MHFHRERP BT SRS -

9 5h 3 T 2 B TY IR 8 4F 7 2 1 51
BB AR E AR EBERRA
GRS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not
have assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended
30 June 2018 after set-off tax loss brought forward from

previous years.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Group operates.

—EB-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAB IR Current tax

— FH — Overseas
R ERERH PRC enterprise income tax = 163,285
AR+ i E R PRC land appreciation tax 6,786 616,907
6,786 780,192

i 3iE Bt 15 Deferred tax
NE (Hat26) Current year (Note 26) 430,359 (32,247)
8B X H#ABE Total income tax expense 437,145 747,945
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

10. FREH X i ()
PAEXMZHEREEABREOS:

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

st Al profit at applicable tax rates:
—E-N\F —E—LtF
2018 2017
FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B R A1 A1) Profit before income tax 1,048,752 1,197,298
BEEMNERHME 16.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate
AE(ZE—tF of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
16.5%) 2 #i18 173,044 197,554
TRAHIR T H 2 B e & Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses 28,056 40,268
BEZRHRKFZ ZBIET & Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (197,592) (15,766)
BN ERER| 2 BT E Tax effect of differences in
overseas tax rates 423,912 (93,992)
RIEERBISEE 2 Tax effect of unused tax losses
M not recognised 3,027 3,691
R TERH) AR B IE Tax effect of utilisation of
=N A unrecognised tax losses (88) (717)
ARt b i E RS PRC land appreciation tax 6,786 616,907
Fri8® % Income tax expense 437,145 747,945
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

11.R 2 11.DIVIDENDS
@ FFERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
FTHExT FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
REIRR BB E@AR7.5 Bl Interim dividend of HK7.5
(ZZ—+1%F : 6.581) cents (2017: HK6.5 cents)
per ordinary share 42,091 34,044
FOREE KRR B FR L @AY Proposed final dividend of
15.0810 (ZF—+4% : 13.5 HK15.0 cents (2017:
B (B EE) HK13.5 cents) per
ordinary share (Note) 85,457 71,726
127,548 105,770
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

11.12 8 (88) 11.DIVIDENDS (Continued)

@ AERE (HE) (a) Dividends attributable to the year (Continued)
ZE-N\FRIZE—+LF P ERK Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
BRMEUBRRSHRFERE - & shareholders in respect of the 2018 and 2017
BOERREIWNT : interim dividend. This alternative was accepted by

the shareholders as follows:

—EB-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
SN Dividends:
RE Cash 10,067 2,794
LARR AR B Share alternative 32,024 31,250
42,091 34,044
Hiat - Note:
RE AR EFE 2 RS AL RN R The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
SHWERREIE- not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

11. 188 (&)

11.DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) ERFRRERISHEFYBEF (b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

ERE year, approved and paid during the year
—EB-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFHHFERPBRE Final dividend in respect of
135810 the previous financial year,
(ZZ—1%F 11081 of HK13.5 cents (2017:
HK11.0 cents) per
ordinary share 73,817 56,392
KRERNS BIR ARG B AR SR8 12 - it Scrip dividend alternative was offered to shareholders

EEREDERREZOD

BB
RE
PARR A8

Dividends:
Cash

Share alter

in respect of the final dividend. This alternative was

accepted by the shareholders as follows:

—E-N\F S
2018 2017

F#ET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

16,138 8,271

native 57,679 48,121
73,817 56,392
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

12.8KRAF 12.EARNINGS PER SHARE
FRERNEDEBERF AT EE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
REAE share is based on the following data:
ZF Earnings
—E—N\EF —E—tF
2018 2017
FERT TETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KEEZZHBAEERET Profit attributable to the owners
U ESRELRR of the Company for the purpose
B #E A A of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 606,619 440,660
igvig 4= Number of shares
—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
EBITEBRZMETFHE  Weighted average number of
et ESIRELRZF ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic earnings per share 550,082,682 514,948,160
EEREERETE Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
BRI Warrants = 1,472,981
BEITEBRZ N Weighted average number of
T BUAG E T ordinary shares for the purposes
BE R A of diluted earnings per share 550,082,682 516,421,141
MR ARBR -_FE—-N\FRA=1+H No diluted earnings per share is presented for 2018 as
BEARATE B ARE I BB s T there was no potential ordinary shares outstanding as at
mi - B —F-N\FERE2E 30 June 2018.

P E AR -
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

BEERSREEAEMNE

131 EEME

ARAREFEWEEW 2 & BER

m

—E-N\F
HITES:
HiHE
%5

FRTES -
O
MR B
HFRIE
THE
FRE

2018

Executive directors:
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
Ho Sau Fun Connie
Yung Philip
Chao Gigi

Non-executive directors:
Chao Howard
Lam Ka Wai Graham*

Sun Ping Hsu Samson*
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth*

Lee Ding Yue Joseph

13.DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or

receivable by the directors of the Company are as

follows:
Az

— Rk RIK
EEMe ¥&  HEEE  HEHR L

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to defined

benefits — contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 8,150 - - 8,150
60 893 - 18 971
60 680 - 18 758
60 1,324 119 18 1,521
60 384 860 18 1,322
144 - - - 144
60 - - - 60
60 - - - 60
60 - - - 60
564 11,431 979 72 13,046
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13.EERESNREBEAEM S (&) 13.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

131 EEBME (8])

—E—+tF
HWITES:
Bt g
BT
B
ich: 92

FHITEE

B0
FHE *
BB
THE*
FRE

2017

Executive directors:
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
Ho Sau Fun Connie
Yung Philip
Chao Gigi

Non-executive directors:
Chao Howard
Lam Ka Wai Graham*

Sun Ping Hsu Samson*

Ting Woo Shou Kenneth*

Lee Ding Yue Joseph

* FMIFMITES

B E TR RANRRITHRAE
HEREOME BREERSTR
BEPTIEHRBNME

BE-T—\FR-F—LFAA
SHALFETSESHERRE
HRE YR -

o & B SR R B R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

HEit et

—HhRh RIK
EExMe e  HeBE IR ik

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to defined

benefits — contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total
TAET TAET TAT TET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
- 7,800 - - 7,800
57 832 - 18 907
57 627 - 18 702
57 1,170 120 18 1,365
57 366 860 18 1,301
137 - - - 137
57 - - - 57
57 - - - 57
57 - - - 57
536 10,795 980 72 12,383

*  Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is also the Chief

Executive of the Company and his emoluments

disclosed above include those for services rendered

by him as Chief Executive.

No directors have waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments in respect of the years ended 30 June
2018 and 2017.
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

BEERSHREBEAEME (B) 13.

B2EESFMzENAL
BHE-_ZT—)/\F~A=1+HLF
B AEEAER—FWIFAERRFA
BEENEEB (2 —tF: —) -
BRAEBRUGZRTMALTHH
HER—((BEAQRAEERASE
EEMEER)  ZUEIHZ_F
—N\FARA=ZTHILEFESD M

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

13.2 Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 30 June 2018, one employee
(2017: one) of the Group who, not being a
director of the Company, was among the top five
highest paid individuals (including directors of
the Company and other employees of the Group)
employed by the Group. The emoluments payable

to the remaining one individual during the year

SEBWOT ended 30 June 2018 are as follows:
—E-N\F —EB—+F
2018 2017
FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fre Salaries 1,242 1,252
RN FRET S Contribution to defined
contribution plans 18 18
1,260 1,270

& 2 4RI T

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals
2018 2017
—E—)N\F —F—+F
1,000,000%1,500,000/8 ¢ HK$1,000,000 to
HK$1,500,000 1 1

RREFEEAN  BERAZEE &S
FIA LS - ERIIAZI
ARE B F E kBB (E -

No emolument was paid to the directors and the
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office during both years.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14.REW=E 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RHEZEHE 2MELRE M HEIRR Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
RIS ¢ consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:
—E-NF —E—LtF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RAREE At fair value
REtA—BZEREE Carrying amount at 1 July 5,644,854 5,549,315
bE i = %5 Exchange differences 115,695 (46,937)
#on Additions:
— BEFEWMESEA(#iF) - transferred from properties for
sale (Note) 187,028 -
— BExX - subsequent expenditure 16,457 68,263
N BERE Change in fair value 1,131,543 74,213
RARA=+REREE Carrying amount at 30 June 7,095,577 5,644,854

Mat : BEZT— N\FRA=ZTHILFE
BEIEK IS EMEEL187,028,000%
TERAFERAREMELEIREME -
ZEMHERERERIRATESE - M
N EWEEL634,3758 LEFTA L

change in fair value above.

AEBETREMEHEREDMEE
2,076,830,000 7T (=T — £ F :
2,714,974,0007% 7T) 2\ # TR 17 LA
BEERTARE ZRITRE (MiFE35) °

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2018, completed
properties for sale of approximately HK$187,028,000
were transferred to investment properties as a result
of change in use. These properties were measured at
fair value at the time of transfer and fair value gain of
approximately HK$634,375 has been included in the

Certain investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
HK$2,076,830,000 (2017: HK$2,714,974,000) were
pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 35).
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14. REW=E (&)

REMEZIAREBEEEE
(i) A EBEBERFZ

TRINRAEEREMEN RS H
MERFIZLEEEERITEZ AN
BE WREBEFEBMBREELSE
1IB3RAFEEFEMRTEZ=ERQ
R EEHANED c AREBELSEM
RAMERDZHABEEE A B
RRHSEUMELATSHE

- B—AME:AE-RBAE
EZAREE BARRE
EXBERAEREEETS
FHRBABRETE -

- BAME:AE-_RBAE
SREZAREE MHEHBAE
ZABREHARNTEE R
WAE BEEHEERAEILIF
ERATAEBRZE8E - TR 8
el NEVRIZ: N ¢ ]
E2E 2B AE -

— F=ZAME:ERTAERH
BIEEZHABUGTEZ AR
BfE -

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14. 5 EWME (8) 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
REVMEZARBEEE (#E) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)
(i) AAEBEERSZ(E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
—E—N\EF —E—+F
2018 2017
F=R F=H
Level 3 Level 3
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REMAREBEEE Recurring fair value measurement
KEWE - Investment properties:
BME-FE Commercial — Hong Kong 21,500 16,760
TE—FE Residential — Hong Kong 3,146,560 2,659,030
EESab:dw! Commercial — Macau 298,538 298,538
F=x—®’F Residential — Macau 933,648 899,291
FE£—FKAE Residential — Malaysia 359,484 340,185
FE—F Residential — PRC 2,335,847 1,431,050
7,095,577 5,644,854
EERE_Z-N\FA=ZTHILF During the year ended 30 June 2018 and 2017,
B BE—WME 2 I EeE there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
B W BEBEEFE AN E= 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
FEL  AEBENBERERSH policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
AR A BERMNKRTELR fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
BREN ERE B RER - period in which they occur.
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14. REY % ()
RENMEZAABEBE (H)

(1)

AR EEERFZF ()
%

E-Z2-NEFR-_ZT—1tFA
—tHIEREVEERBLLER
BEBGEMETER - UNEE

WIREMED B BRI ERTT
BRAREITER - MAREREA
RPN B Y RS BER
FHEBARARETEM - ERTIR
BEMISEEAERA HEMNRLE
RRER - W2EER — M MR
MBLUYMERIRTISERS - B
BB EAFE 2IBmPHER - &
HEAEBENRENELAAEE
- BHRCR&ES MRENER -

AREBEEEETHRFERSEH
HYE T E R BRI E R E T A ER

B

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June
2018 and 2017 by independent and professional
qualified valuers. The valuation of properties in
Hong Kong was revalued by K.T. Liu Surveyors
Limited. The valuation of properties in Malaysia,
Macau and PRC were revalued by Roma Appraisals
Limited. The properties were revalued on market
value basis on their existing development stage
and usage, and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the similar
location and condition or by capitalisation of
future rental which is estimated by reference to
comparable rental as available. The revaluation
gains were recognised in profit or loss for the
year. In estimating the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The Group’s management has discussion with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14. 5 EWME (8) 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
REYECZAREBEEEE () Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)
(i) BE=RANBEETZEHEF (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
REME: hERE (Witwan)  FUBRRNBARE FIBRNBAHE
Investment properties:  Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
(Note (a)&(b))
—2-N\fF Tt
2018 2017
Ax-ER LON-UN|#3 BRei% B£2.50% §43.25%
Commercial - Hong Kong  Income capitalisation Capitalisation rates 2.50% per 3.25% per
approach annum annum
FE-%% AL RA mE® B/ FiR) 5,877 - 92,515 6,176 - 66,999
Residential - Hong Kong ~ Market comparison Market price (HKD/square feet)
approach

nEOmE  UE B

g () /&R (22.5%) - 36.8%  (62.5%) - 35.8%
(Discount)/Premium on quality,

location, view and floor level of

the properties
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

14. REY % ()
RENMEZAABEBE (H)

A% -2

Commercial - Macau

£ - 2P

Residential - Macau

1%% - r% %EEE

Residential - Malaysia

FE-HE
Residential - PRC

(i) BE=RAABEEHER (&)

MHLEE
Market comparison
approach

MiEL B
Market comparison
approach

ISHEE
Market comparison
approach

MIEL B
Market comparison
approach

(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

mEE (R /¥AR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

DEORE B 28
BE® (71) /4B
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties

mEE (BML/IHR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

nEOWE  NE-FE-
BEW (710) /48
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties

mER (HEh/ AR
Market price (RM/square feet)

NEORE HE 28
BEM () /8B
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties

mEE (ARE/LHK)
Market price (RMB/square meter)

DEORE B S8
BEH (71) /48
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties
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14. REY % ()
RENMEZAABEBE (H)

(i) BE=RAABEEHER (&)

BreE - (%)

(a)

E_ZF-N\ER-_F—LFXA
=tH URBBENEERED
EUARKREEHBAEROEE
R ELER AR HBEMN
ZTMEEENHD2EAEENAH
HEMAREGNESET  PKE
R ER R 2RGEMEE
WEUMETERERKEE - B
VAl {8 Bl 19 351 3% 4 26 B R B () 32
IMARE - AABEENFEZR
BRI ZaBERE -

EZZE-N\FR-_E—LF A
=THB - REE R BXR
AERTFENEEREEREY
ENAARBERZ2RAILEY
FHOIHEHEBRBEASERE
BB LEEAEE - BRE
EUTHISHE R ENES
Ve SEMZEREEERIN
M-pEE NE SBLEE
MmE RABEZENSEE M
AABEERD BT -

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, the fair values of
certain commercial investment properties in Hong
Kong are determined using income capitalisation
approach by capitalisation of future rental. In the
valuation, the market rentals of all lettable units
are made by reference to the rentals achieved by
the Group in the lettable units. The capitalisation
rate adopted is by reference to the yield rates
observed by the valuers for similar properties in the
locality and adjusted for the valuers’ knowledge of
factors specific to the respective properties. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the

capitalisation rate.

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, the fair value of
commercial and residential investment properties
located in Hong Kong, Macau, Malaysia and the PRC
are determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted
for a premium or a discount mainly specific to
the quality, location, view and floor level of the
properties compared to the recent sales. The fair
value increase as to premium and fair value decrease
as to discount on quality, location, view and floor

level.
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15. 9% - BERRE 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

200

& The Group
BEIHE
BREEA
JEEE HH-KBR
landand EFERE
buildingheld ~ Furniture, ~ KEREH#
for own use fittings Motor HENR%H
carried at and office  vehicles and Leasehold am
fairvalue  equipment  accessories improvements Total
THET THT ThAL ThER ThEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z-x¥tA-H At 1 July 2016
A Cost - 12,103 7,659 939 20,701
ftE Valuation 28,000 - - - 28,000
ZithE Accumulated depreciation - (8,318) (7,366) (183) (15,867)
ERETE Net book amount 28,000 3,785 293 756 32,834
HEZE-t& Year ended 30 June 2017
ABZTHLEE
BUREETE Opening net book amount 28,000 3,785 293 756 32,834
ERER Exchange differences - (65) 19 - (46)
Em Additions - 276 104 - 380
i Depreciation (560) (824) (156) (313) (1,853)
BRER Deficit on revaluation (116) - - - (116)
HAREEFE Closing net book amount 27,324 3,172 260 443 31,199
R=Z-t§XA=+H At 30 June 2017
A Cost - 12,267 7,652 939 20,858
fb1E Valuation 27,324 - - - 27,324
ZHHE Accumulated depreciation - (9,095) (7,392) (496) (16,983)
REERE Net book amount 27,324 3,172 260 443 31,199
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
BEIHE
EFEER
ZEEE BR £2BR
landand EBFEHRE
building held ~ Furniture, ~ SEREH
for own use fittings Motor REWEHEE
carried at and office  vehicles and Leasehold aE
fair value  equipment  accessories improvements Total
TER TER FER TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hz-Z-N\%& Year ended 30 June 2018
RAZTHLEE
HREEFE Opening net book amount 27,324 3,172 260 443 31,199
[EHES Exchange differences - 49 6 - 55
Em Additions - 373 112 - 485
nE Depreciation (546) (859) (114 (313) (1,832)
R Surplus on revaluation 7,392 - - - 7,392
HAREETE Closing net book amount 34,170 2,735 264 130 37,299
R=B-NEXB=TH At 30 June 2018
AR Cost - 12,828 7,777 939 21,544
fhfE Valuation 34.170 - - - 34,170
2iiE Accumulated depreciation - (10,093) (7,513) (809) (18,415)
REEFE Net hook amount 34,170 2,735 264 130 37,299

HIWREFUARKTEEER  HH

BT

DN Cost

E i Accumulated depreciation
SR F{E Net book amount
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cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

If the land and building were stated on the historical

—ZE—N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
20,200 20,200
(2,828) (2,424)
17,372 17,776
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

15.*%%‘% &D§1ﬁ(nﬁ)

REBMEZ T HEBFREERZ
“ABRTEE 434,170,000 T (=T —+t
F :27,324,000/87T) B AREE 2R
TEFEER (MsE35) -

THREFZAANEBEHEE
(i) ™A EEBERIZE

TR RAEE L1 RIEFRIRE
BRI A R IR B AR n—I_EZ N
AEE UREESVBRS W
FI3HFARBEFAEAREZ=
N EERRED o@ﬁﬁﬁ%%
FIRAEERD 2B ABEBRES
BRLHEHSEMMELATOHE

— B—RMEE: UE-REAE
FTEZAREE BARRE
EXRBENFERREERRTS
PHRBEREE

- B_AME:AE-_LBWAE
AEZzAREE BEBAR
ZABREHEARTEE R
WAE BEESEERAELIF
ERATAEBRZEE - TR 8
A PNV RiE I ¢ ]
B2E 2B A B

— F=RMHEERTAEBRH
BEEZHABUFEZAR
R

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
All the Group’s land and building with an aggregate

carrying value at the reporting date of approximately
HK$34,170,000 (2017: HK$27,324,000) were pledged

to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note

35).

Fair value measurement of land and building

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of

the Group’s land and building measured at the

end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

The level into which a fair value measurement

is classified is determined with reference to the

observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.
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15. 9% ~ eI R =RE (&)

THREFZAARBEEEE (H)

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of land and building

(i) AAEEBRLZE (&)

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

—E-N\F —F—LtF
2018 2017
B=& F=M
Level 3 Level 3
TERT TATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEAREBEEE Recurring fair value
measurement
BEEERA LM EESF : Land and building held for
own use:
EE-—FB Residential — Hong Kong 34,170 27,324

ERE_ZE-N\FRZZE—TEFX
A=THIFERN  E—HKME=
MzEWEER KW BEEBEES
EREIME=REL - AEEBK
REBRERSHBETEFANLE
BERRIEFERE HBERAENEEE

R ER o

EZZTE—N\FEZZE—1EFKA
TR MREFEHBEIREE
EERGERMEITEMR - B
EMTERARIBEMSEEAE
i WS ELR B KA L
MERTERAMISER 5 X2 EHRER
AtkBREEmMEELHNRREEE
AL ©

AEBEEEETHRFERSEH
HE 1T ERT BRI E R A 1T (R ER

AR R A e

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

The land and building were revalued on 30 June
2018 and 2017 by independent and professional
qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited on
market value basis and by reference to recent
market transactions for similar properties in the
similar location and condition or by capitalisation
of future rental which is estimated by reference to

comparable rental as available.

The Group’s management has discussion with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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15. 9% - g% () 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
THEEFZAAREBEEE (H) Fair value measurement of land and building
(Continued)
(i) BEZRAABEGTZENER (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
BAFERLHEET
Land and building held for
own use:
% L BUE FABENBA HE
Market Comparison Unobservable input Range
approach
ZB-N\F “EtF
2018 2017
FE-%8 MG BA miaE &/ FIR) 20,255 15,431
Residential - Hong Kong ~ Market comparison Market price (HKD/square feet)
approach

MEORE [UE-

88 ZEHHN (8%) (4%)
Discount on quality, location,

view and floor level of the

properties
URBEBENBEREE L NE The fair value of residential land and building
FHAABEEEAMIS LB located in Hong Kong are determined using market
EE  2RAILBMEAIHREE comparison approach by reference to recent sales
RE/ERER  BREMENE price of comparable properties on a price per
B UE RENEERABRGEEX square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or a
mE REE UE SEREE discount mainly specific to the quality, location,
ME AR BENENREE A view and floor level of the properties compared
R EERD BRI - to the recent sales. The fair value increase as to

premium and fair value decrease as to discount on

quality, location, view and floor level.

FHEEERAN LT REBFEMRE Deficit/Surplus on revaluation of land and

B/ BB EAEEMEEWETH building held for own use is recognised in other

(MEEGHFEBITER - comprehensive income in “property revaluation
reserve”.
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

1. HthERBEE 16.OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET
=E-N\F —F—+tF
2018 2017
TFET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
@ ATES Club debenture 950 950
& BT (& A AR A S50 (B 8 18 51 BR Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

17. 5t MEE 17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
HiteMEEBRBATRE Other financial assets included the following
investments:

=—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEZIBHNES Held-to-maturity debt securities,
VA SEE at amortised cost
&5 (Kfita) Debenture (Note a) 2,408 18,126
At ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets,
AR B1E (K atb) at fair value (Note b)
KAEFH Perpetual notes 128,933 114,629
(EE: Debentures 36,788 _
165,721 114,629
168,129 132,755

Annual Report 2018 ## | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (#@) AR A 205



206

GEMBREWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

17. Rt EmMEE (R)

(@)

BEEZIYER
RZE—NFRNAZ+H &EFHF2MO
WAFFE7.50%  BFEFRE—X
YHR—ZTE_ZTF=AEH -x5HH
1 &K T 4% ABB- °

E-ZT—+tFANA=Z+H EBEEHR
SN EH AR E S B F R EN F6.50%
£12.00% B¥FRE—X W=
TR F_RAET=F—HEH -
RHE TR FTRAEB- ©

HE-_Z-NFXA=+RHILFE
A EEBBIINLETH=2RESFE L
E MEEREEEINHESNEE
£527,00078 7C °

AEFRELLTESFNAREBENRE
MysE31.7FTal AT E ©

BREEZIHNESEZS  EHEME
82,408,000 0 (=& — £ 4F :
18,126,000 7T) B - UERE T
REEERITER (MIFE35) ©

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(@)

Held-to-maturity debt securities at, amortised cost

As at 30 June 2018, a debenture listed outside Hong
Kong earns interest of 7.50% per annum payable semi-
annually, and mature in March 2020. The counterparty

has a minimum BB- rating.

As at 30 June 2017, four debentures listed outside Hong
Kong earn interests ranged from 6.50% to 12.00% per
annum payable semi-annually, and mature in February
2020 to January 2023. The counterparty has a minimum
B- rating.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, three of the
debentures listed outside Hong Kong was sold and the
gain on disposal of held-to-maturity debt securities is
HK$527,000.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed

securities has been measured as described in Note 31.7.

Held-to-maturity debt securities with carrying value
of HK$2,408,000 (2017: HK$18,126,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 35).
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17.HMEMEE (&) 17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
W&t - (4 Note: (Continued)
(by AIHESHREE (b) Available-for-sale financial assets, at fair value
=ZE-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB LEHKAES Listed perpetual notes listed in Hong
BRRBENEIG) Kong at fair value (Note (i) 125,346 114,629
BRI ETKAES - Listed perpetual notes listed outside
TR BE (W) Hong Kong at fair value (Note (ii)) 3,587 -
128,933 114,629
HEELTES Listed debentures listed in Hong Kong
BAREE BEG)) at fair value (Note (iii)) 8,807 -
BEABEII ETES Listed debentures listed outside Hong
BAREE B ZG)) Kong at fair value (Note (iv)) 27,981 -
36,788 -
165,721 114,629
Bt - Note:
() AEEREKARE  XLEN (i) The Group had investment in perpetual notes
F500,0003 7T £10,000,0003 with principal amounts ranging from US$500,000
T EEEIHE  FBANER to US$10,000,000 listed in Hong Kong without
7.75%  EEHEBBEENF5.72% fixed maturity date at floating rate of 7.75% with
hneh i) 7 35 4 B A 2 % [E] 5E A 2 reset rate on reset date ranging from 5.72% plus
N R4.45%%6.50%.2 A mid-market swap rate and fixed rates ranging
BHFRE — R DR ERKD from 4.45% to 6.50% per annum, payable semi-
8,428,000 7T (=T —+ 4 : 18 annually. A decrease in fair value of approximately
7M2,242,0007 7T) 7 H Ath 2 UK HK$8,428,000 (2017: increase HK$2,242,000) is
PR - recognised in the other comprehensive income.
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BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

17.HtbE@mEE (8)
Bt - (4B
(b) THESREE (&)

Hrat - (48)

(i) AAHMA  NEEEAERTE
HHBEREBBINLETASEA
500,0003 7T B 5K A% B) I 2=
B FIRABFB525E  FEF
RE—IR o RREERL111,000
BITEEEMERE REPHER -

FRN RNEEEEBEBAMEL
mES - A& %" F250,0003%
JLE1,000,000% T * B8 H A&
202092 H22H &2028%F1H31
B -BEZEEMNELSEF7.25%
}%6.50% B¥FRE—K A
ARAEER 1,114,000 T2 R E
2 UL 2= P RERR o

(iii)

FRN - AEBBRELTE
% KN& BN F240,000F T =
1,500,000% 7T - EEEREA -
RZEZ—FEOA-+HmHEZ=E
ZERFANAZFNAHEHE -
EEZEMENFEFF6.25%%
8.75% BHFIRE — KRR
BER 25,125,000 7T 2 7 H A
FHER=FER -

(v) REEBEZETEEFORENAR
BECILKE31.7FTMTE -

AEE 2 EER@MA
165,721,000 7T (20174 :
114,629,000/ 7T) B # #f LA HUE
BT ARER ZRITRUE (FIFE35) ©

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =4t (£8) ARAR

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets, at fair value
Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(vi)

During the year, the Group acquired perpetual notes
with principal amount of US$500,000 listed outside
Hong Kong without fixed maturity date at a coupon
rate of 5.25% per annum, payable semi-annually. A
decrease in fair value of approximately HK$111,000

is recognised in the other comprehensive income.

During the year, the Group acquired two listed
debentures with principal amounts of US$250,000
and US$1,000,000 listed in Hong Kong with
maturity dates of 22 February 2020 and 31 January
2028 at a fixed coupon rates of 7.25% and 6.50%
per annum, payable semi-annually, respectively.
A decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$1,114,000 is recognised in the other

comprehensive income.

During the year, the Group acquired six listed
debentures with principal amounts ranging from
US$240,000 to US$2,500,000 with fixed maturity
date ranging from 24 April 2021 to 28 June 2025
at a coupon rates ranging from 6.25% to 8.75% per
annum, payable semi-annually. A decrease in fair
value of approximately HK$5,125,000 is recognised

in the other comprehensive income.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed
securities has been measured as described in Note
31.7.

Available-for-sale financial assets with carrying
value of approximately HK$165,721,000 (2017:
HK$114,629,000) have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 35).

| Annual Report 2018 3§



o & B SR R B R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

8. & 2 =l 18.SUBSIDIARIES
b'é E-NFE_FE—+tFA=1+ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2018
FEWNBRAF] Z SR - and 2017 are as follows:
BERITRE

AMRLEE/ AR /ERRE
KE®E  Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation ordinary share BREZRELA

WERQF or registration/  capital/registered Proportion of TEXH
Name operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
B 3
Directly  Indirectly
Ace Cosmos Finance Limited EBRLHE  10000RBHRIZT  7242% - REBRK
British Virgin 10,000 US$ (2017: (2017:-)  Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") 1 shares 72.42%)
AEREBRAA) BR ARE2E T 100% - WEEE
Bongi Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017:  (2017:-)  Property trading
100%)
FEMEXEERRAF B MBEAT 100% .
Cheuk Nang Property Management Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017: (2017:-)  Property management services
Company Limited 100%)
AXHEREERBERAA B 2308 T 100% - RERERRH
Dun Man Secretarial and Management Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$20 (2017:  (2017:-)  Provision of secretarial and
Services Limited 100%) management services
BEREBRAA & WRAET 100% - HERE
Golden Scheme Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017: (2017:-)  Property investment
100%)
REREBRAA B WRAET 100% - RBETMERERER
Green View Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017:  (2017:-)  Mortgage lending, property
100%) investment and development
REEXBRAGS B 3,000/% - 100% HERERER
#300,000 7T
Lo & Son Land Investment Company Hong Kong 3,000 shares, ~ (2017:-) (2017: Property investment and
Limited* HK$300,000 100%) development
BEEXBRAR) &6 WrFHET 100% - MERE
Lucky Faith Properties Limited® Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017: (2017:-)  Property investment
100%)
Martego Sdn Bhd * SRAEE 5,000,000%% - 100% MEREREE
BRIMES
Malaysia 5,000,000 shares 2017: -) (2017: Property investment and
of RM1 each 100%) development
BERRARAT Bk WeH2ET 100% - WERE
New Grow Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017: (2017:-)  Property investment
100%)
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18.Ft B~ 7 () 18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
RZFE-—NFRZZE-—LEFRA=T Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2018
H:TEZERBATZERWT « (&) and 2017 are as follows: (Continued)
EERTRE

AMRLEE/ AR /ERRE
KE®E  Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation ordinary share BREZRELA

WERQF or registration/  capital/registered Proportion of TEXH
Name operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
B 3
Directly  Indirectly
Power Tripod Limited BA 10,000% - 100% HWEZEREE
$10,000% 7
Hong Kong 10,000 shares ~ (2017: -) (2017: Property development and trading
HK$10,000 100%)
ERERBRAA &6 WR2ET 100% - BERERBAHE
Power Wide Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2017:  (2017:-)  Property investment and
100%) investment holding
B (2 BRAF BB 100BH1008 T - T170%  HERERER
Top Regent (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100 shares, HK§100 ~ (2017: -) (2017: Property investment and
71.70%) development
BAERERAR: R WrFHET - 100% HERERER
Yorkshon Development Limited® Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 ~ (2017:-) (2017: Property investment and
100%)  development
KERERAR R 1REETL 100% - WBERE
Ever Regal Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 (2017: (2017:-)  Property investment
100%)
SHRERRAF 0 10,0008 100% - BERE
#10,000% 7T
Cheuk Nang Construction Company Hong Kong 10,000 shares, (2017: (2017:-)  Property development
Limited HK$10,000  100%)
SEMEEE (M) BRA " (Witi) i 500,000A R & - 100% RENEEERS
(Note (1)) PRC RMB500,000 2017:-) (2017 Provision of property management
100%) services
e (R MEERERAE (Witi) i 500,000A & & - 100% RENEEERS
(Note (i) PRC RMB500,000 2017:-) (2017: Provision of property management
100%) services
ARRRERR (M) BRAT (M) G 94,000,000 ¢ - 100% SHELE
(Note (i) PRC US$94,000,000 (2017: -) (2017: Property development
100%)
HREHERR (RI) BRAG" (W) REL 494,000,000A KK - 100% WEERREER
(Note (i) PRC RMB494,000,000 2017:-) (2017: Property investment, development
100%) and trading
RS RESRG TRERA A" i 5,000,000A K% - 100% HEER
(W) R i) (Note (i) & (iii) PRC RMB5,000,000  (2017:-)  (2017:-)  Property development
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18.Mff B2 = ()

Brat o ()

(iii)

##

ZERBBRBEPBOAREMS
SN EDRE -

EERREBERFEAREHZ
XEXREBEENTEWNBARE
HENERA - WINEFTAR
FIHEMHME AR ZFIEEE
EEFBRITE -

ZN BB ANEERANFERAL

WEARZREEERFRT
ERBRITHAEEIERERZ
ZB IR (B 5E35) ©

REFFARHE (FE) g5tmE
BHRARARBERRK -

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

i#

The entity is registered as a wholly foreign owned

enterprise under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

The Company is incorporated by the Group
during the year.

Shares of these subsidiaries have been pledged to
banks as security for bank loan facilities granted
to the Group (Note 35).

Companies not audited by Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited.
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18. (i 2 7 (&)
TRIE T ALEHBL RS (M)
ERAR (AEEMMEDRERHEA
BEAMIERERS) MEMER - TX

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The following table lists out the information related
to Top Regent (Asia) Limited, the subsidiary of the

Group which has material non-controlling interest.

FrE5MM%EER  REMBREMA AR

X 5 Al 2 8L

The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

B (M) BRAA Top Regent (Asia) Limited
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
SEElRER A DX Non-controlling interest
percentage 28.30% 28.30%
SERBEE Non-current assets 1,232,186 1,197,829
MENE E Current assets 387,582 380,851
mEAE Current liabilities (9,062) (12,389)
FERBaltE Non-current liabilities (218,614) (189,691)
BEFE Net assets 1,392,092 1,376,600
SEFEl R REE Carrying amount of
non-controlling interest 394,020 389,578
WA Revenue - _
N E i A Profit for the year 15,492 29,577
REETENRAER Total comprehensive profit
for the year 15,492 29,577
7B T IR IR AE 25 2 0 T Profit allocated to
non-controlling interest 4,385 8,370
EEEBMELS, (BA) Cash flows generated from/
MRS RE (used in) operating activities 62,924 (6,740)
WEFESFBAMIIEERE Cash flows used in investing
activities (61,632) (18,221)
BEEENFT (EA) EARK  Cash flows (used in)/generated
RenE from financing activities (942) 24,948
HemA Crt) Ez8 Net cash inflows/(outflows) 350 (13)
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19. 586 =x 19.PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
—E-N\F T —tF
2018 2017
FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BERERPME Properties under development 1,489,527 1,422,132
BRI Completed properties 504,750 671,441
1,994,277 2,093,573

MHIFEYE (- T —+F 424,797,000
BT B TIRARTT  WERE T ARE

EZ RITRE (FRE35) °

20 BARBEEFABRZZENE
F

No properties held for sale (2017: HK$424,797,000)
have been pledged to secure banking borrowings (Note
35).

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

=
—E2-N\F —E—LF
2018 2017
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RAREBESAERZZ Financial assets at fair value
TRMEE through profit or loss
RBEFEE-NREL Held for trading — Equity
TR ERS securities listed in Hong Kong 7,128 15,143

BRERAREBEEFABRZEREE
(ZZ—+%F 8,279,000 T) E F &
FERTT - BB FASEEZRITRLE
(Ft5E35) °

AEEBRELITREFZAABEDR
PRMTEE 31.7 WOREAEE -

No financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of the Group (2017: HK$8,279,000) were pledged to

secure banking borrowings (Note 35).

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed
equity securities have been measured as described in

Note 31.7.
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21. B E 5 MR R H b FE I BR K

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—B-N\F —F—+tF
2018 2017
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
EWE 3 RN Trade receivables
"E=4% From third parties 1,672 1,421
H fth B W BR X Other receivables
EHEBEBRRAXLBRES Prepaid expenses and
utilities deposits 17,399 16,173
TEATE bR TE Prepaid other taxes 1,162 2,329
Hth & Y R TR Other receivables 24,218 10,298
42,779 28,800
44,451 30,221

AREEZERWEZEFEEES WA
FEEBWA - EERZHEPAH - K
SECETEERAENFEERZE
EEE HEFHNRE  MERER
TEHIRC BN E -

ERBEIE 5 & H 8RR
AEERARMELESZKD R
MBI BB ERE -

The trade receivables of the Group represent rental and
management fee in arrears. Before accepting any new
customers, the Group performs credit check to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and tenants are
required to pay deposits. All invoices are due upon

presentation.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair
values of trade and other receivables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these

amounts have short maturity periods on their inception.
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1. EWNEBESESREMAEIWBEEE 21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(#&)
REREXFROL  BUB SRR
AR i 55 4T 40 T

0-30 X 0-30 days
31-60 X 31-60 days
61-90 X 61-90 days
83890 K Over 90 days

REBEF— @RS B S5 ERERIZ
BRI MEREERELBERERER
BIERE - AT \FRZT—+F
NA=ZTHIEMEFE - W8 REEE
AR 1A W SR R R OB BB 18 -

EREEAEEZE S BWER &S
ABRMEEA1,672,0008 7L (ZF—+t
£ :1,421,000/870) R E A BEE
REBRBRE  HEUKBRFEEBEA
EAREEERIFVERLSE  BEBET
EELE ERERERAEEREEERR
BEERMERERKATUAZEHYE -
IEEERERIELRERE - RERH
Rziz&sh  REBR I FRRIW &5
BEMAERG -

(Continued)

Based on the debit note or invoice dates, the ageing

analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

—E-N\E —F—+F
2018 2017
TET FETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
403 532

4 168

45 238

1,220 483
1,672 1,421

At each reporting date the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on
receivables through the provision account for the two
years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$1,672,000 (2017:
HK$1,421,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not been provided.
These receivables are related to a number of diversified
debtors that has a good track record of credit with
the Group. Based on past credit history, management
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered to be fully recoverable. Except for
deposits received from tenants, the Group does not hold

any other collateral over these balances.
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TE HATF SR 7N B A B HA AT BREUE 6%
FMB(ZE—+HF 1 2%) °

BREASEBENRETRBABSETY
642,963,000 T (=& — £ F :
841,129,000 A& 7T) AfF A BEEA
RITAARBEENRITET - AR
TN EBABRNERE - BEBHEHIN
MEEIRIGOI RINEZ ZIRHIP R EE
MIHEMZAHITHIES] - AEBE AR
BEEEAETIINE LM EBHNRITH
AR R RBINEG o

22.BTEEFREE 22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

—E—N\F —E—+F

2018 2017

FERT TATT

HK$’000 HK$’000

(R RER =Y Pledged deposits 9,997 4,677

EHF R Fixed deposits 195,632 32,772

RITEETF Cash at bank 518,393 876,257

HHeHlenERE2RN Cash and cash equivalents
Re RS FED as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position

and cash flows 724,022 913,706

The fixed deposits earn 6% (2017: 2%) interest per

annum with an original maturity 6 months.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
HK$642,963,000 (2017: HK$841,129,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.
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23.OTHER PAYABLES

—B-N\F —F—+tF
2018 2017
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
REBEE Current liabilities
H fth fE Y BR X Other payables
EWEERS Sales deposits received 205,803 218,732
HERSE Tenant deposits 7,785 7,378
HiEMERRRETER Other payable and accruals 131,401 137,378
344,989 363,488
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
H th F& 4 7R Other payables
H & 1~ 5K I8 Other payable - 3,970

HMEMNRAKOERERESEQAR
BENGEMHHE -

EZZT—)\F  RBERBERHGS -
Bt 467,582,000/ T EAMEER
o YEBRER-E-NENA=1H
B FETRR KA ©

HiENBERES & B ELH
3,965,000 L (=& — £ F
7,263,000/ 7T 53,970,000/ 7L 21 7%
B NRIERB D) MBI E D - BEE
MARERE12%(ZF—+HF 1 12%)
i F B3 H942,0008 0 (Z T —+4F:
1,734,000 70) B4 #ER (M 5E8) °

The carrying values of other payables are considered to

be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

In 2018, based on the PRC court orders, approximately
HK$67,582,000 has been provided to compensate the
buyers and included in the other payable as at 30 June
2018.

Other payables include additional stamp duty
of HK$3,965,000 (2017: HK$7,263,000 and
HK$3,970,000 in current and non-current portion
respectively) in current portion. The effective interest
rate of the stamp duty payable is 12% per annum
(2017: 12%) and interest charge of HK$942,000 (2017:
HK$1,734,000) have been recognised (Note 8).
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24. FE{+—RAE AT IFEIZRRERE 24.AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED
COMPANY/NON-CONTROLLING

MIE

Z PR S EEE - 2B R EE EER
B EEmEREALEEES -

25. 5 EEE
BHCEEEINMT -

hBAE
RITERR—FA
B HZ B0

FRBEME
IRITERN —F1&
B HZ 5 0

BEHER—FRIH
=14 v)

o

ok

25.

Current liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings is as

follows:

Portion of loans from bank

due for repayment within

one year

Non-current liabilities

Portion of loans from banks

due for repayment after

one year

Bond due for repayment

after one year

—E—N\F —E—+F

2018 2017

K&t FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(@) 1,203,416 489,791
(a) - 645,016
(b) 9,883 9,674
9,883 654,690

1,213,299 1,144,481
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

25.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(Continued)
RITER  BEFRRITEZ AN The contractual maturities of the above bank
K borrowings and bond are as follows:
—E2-N\F —E—LF
2018 2017
FER FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRE & —F N Within one year 1,203,416 489,791
BA—FETZRMEF More than one year but not
more than two years - 645,016
HBEAMFETNZRAF More than two years but not
more than five years 9,883 -
| A F More than five years _ 9,674
1,213,299 1,144,481
et Notes:
(a) MARITERASEERREBNENE (a) Certain bank borrowings are secured (Note 35) and

BER(M35) @ RITERRHKE A
ZEBRAMEKA2.6993% (T —+4F
2.2264%) °

f& % M {E10,500,0007 7T & E K F &
LA R 5% & E FI R AAFE - £
WERZEBRIEG7.9450% (ZF
—+F 1 7.9450%) - BEHEREFER
1R~ RGBS - TR H
EEELR —_E-_—_FN\A=-+<H
ZH - BERTERTR—FEIE - 8
RIERBDEE -

(b)

interest-bearing at floating rates. The effective interest
rate of the bank loans at the reporting date is 2.6993%
(2017: 2.2264%).

Bond with nominal value of HK$10,500,000 is unsecured
and bears interest at a fixed rate of 5% per annum. The
effective interest rate of the bond at the reporting date
is 7.9450% (2017: 7.9450%). The bond has no early
redemption clause, is unconditional, unsubordinated,
non-convertible, unsecured and with maturity date on
26 August 2022. The bond classified as a non-current

liability is expected to be settled after one year.
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25.

26.
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BEEBE (&)

25.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

ERBERRARNRAZEREENT
HER N BHKAESRK -

FBRTERTNEVBHRE —RE
KRR P2 G - HASBEERIEREFH
AR ERANGER - B - K&
ErEHERENTEEHTERA
B BITRE BRI 2R BER E A IR
R MEREEAKRERECETAN
MEZBREME -

AEBTHERELEHBRENET  221%
FRIENRREET  REAEEEERT
BEHEER  AEETRARITEZITEDR
BEZRENR AEEETERBDESR
S EAME R F A FE31.3F c R=ZF
—N\FRA=Z=1+H UTEEREFEAE
HHEHE(ZT—tF - &) o

iIE #E B 18
FREEHEAEEBOT

(Continued)

The above interest-bearing bank borrowings, including
the term loans, are carried at amortised cost.

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants that are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand. In addition, none
of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to
demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective
of whether the Group has met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of the term loans and does not consider it probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 31.3.
As at 30 June 2018, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2017: Nil).

.DEFERRED TAXATION

The movements during the year in the deferred taxation
are as follows:

—E-N\F —E—+F

2018 2017

FE T FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

i el = At 1 July (746,914) (793,321)

ME = FE Exchange differences 4,196 14,141

B 18 7 R Recognised in profit or loss (430,359) 32,247
EHEEMEEKEFER Recognised in other

comprehensive income (1,220) 19

RANB=+A At 30 June (1,174,297) (746,914)
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26.3E B E ()
FRNELEHEEERBE (EHERBE

26.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

BRI IHAE SRR BB T ¢ (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:
EEHREEE Deferred tax liabilities
MEEHER
RtuigEs
Revaluation
gain on
properties 0% Bt 18 #7
and land  Accelerated
appreciation tax e
tax depreciation Total
TET FTET FTET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZT-—RELHA—H At 1 July 2016 803,867 26,721 830,588
[EH =28 Exchange differences (14,141) - (14,147)
BGHA) /XHEBRSES (Credited)/charged to profit or
loss (31,063) 367 (30,696)
Bt AERMEEKEP Credited to other
comprehensive income (19) - (19)
RZZE—+FA=THEK At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017
—F—tFtA—H 758,644 27,088 785,732
fEH =% Exchange differences (4,196) - (4,196)
BEXHERRF Charged to profit or loss 431,580 50 431,630
B AEEMEE KGR Credited to other
comprehensive income 1,220 - 1,220
R-ZZE-NExA=+H At 30 June 2018 1,187,248 27,138 1,214,386
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26. IEFE B IH (48)
EEBAEE

R-ZT—RELA—H
BEEtAEEREF

RZZE—tFRA=+THEX

BEEFAEREF

R-ZZ2-NFXA=*+AH

B RS AR R R HERR AN TS

T B 75 51K 00 ¥ 3R HE BB Y
BEMIREEFE

T B 75 51R 00 ¥R 3R e BB Y
BEEM AR EFE

26.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

BEEE

Tax losses

BT

HK$'000

At 1 Ju]y 2016 (37,267)

Credited to profit or loss (1,551)
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017

(38,818)

Credited to profit or loss (1,271)

At 30 June 2018 (40,089)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

financial position:

—B-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Net deferred tax assets recognised
in the statement of financial
position (12,951) (11,732)
Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the statement
of financial position 1,187,248 758,646
1,174,297 746,914
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26.EFEFLIF (48) 26.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
RWBEREEBEEE Unrecognised tax losses
AP DR TRRL R AR A ORI SRt The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
B 15 B 18345,971,0008 T (ZF —+ HK$345,971,000 (2017: HK$325,043,000) due to
1 325,043,000/ 0) RIELEHRIBE unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
E o RIBRFHRIGERD - ZEHIAERE do not expire under current tax legislation.

WEEEA -

27 BA R # 1w 27.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(A) BRZA (A) Share capital
“B-N\f¥ “B—tF
2018 2017
Mt kG #A THR R &R TER
Number of Number of
Notes shares HK$/000 shares HK$'000

BEMTHRZLER  Ordinary shares, issued

and fully paid:
AREEZEBR Voting ordinary shares:
RARFEA At the beginning of the year 531,254,617 2,050,018 501,276,582 1,910,644
AR BETEl Issue of shares pursuant to
METRH scrip dividend scheme (n 19,922,530 89,703 16,023,824 79,371
R B E Issue of shares by exercise
&7 £ of warrants 2) 18,533,711 81,548 13,954,211 60,003
WAEER At the end of the year 569,710,858 2,221,269 531,254,617 2,050,018

Annual Report 2018 ## | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED &k (£ME) HRAR 223



224

GEMBREWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F£XB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

27 AR s (4E)

(A) BR& (&)

1. BIRAEGEE

@ EZFT—X"F+ZA+nh
B AQAFREBER =T —X
F+—AZ+N\BAMEA
A& B 5 & - LA5.307%8 JT B
TS B - ££9,079,371
ff4s TR =T — RNERAR
BEEEURRE ZRE -

ZE—tEFWMAZFR
CARBRBREBR T+
ZAZTHhLBRMEHARK
BET & bA4.5008 T BT
DB - $£6,944,453 %
BTFHR T —tFHHRE
BEURRBEZKRE -

(c) EZZ—+tF+=A=++
B AARREBER =T —+t
F+ZA—BRMHARNK
BEtEl 0 bA4.40/8 T B 1T
D5 - #£13,108,7915%
BT =T —tFRARE
EEURREZKRE -

(dy EZZE—N\FWOA=+8H"
ARARBER T —N\FMHM
AN B QM)A KRR B E
g A4.708 T E TR 9 B
f&fn + 7£6,813,7390%45 F 5t
ZE-)N\FHEKREEZENU
AR B Z AR -

27.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(A) Share capital (Continued)

Notes:

1.  Scrip dividend scheme

(@) On 19 December 2016, the Company issued
and allotted a total 9,079,371 ordinary shares in
the Company at HK$5.30 to shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu
of cash for the 2016 final dividend pursuant to
the script dividend scheme announced by the

Company on 28 November 2016.

(b) On 26 April 2017, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 6,944,453 ordinary shares in
the Company at HK$4.50 to shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu
of cash for 2017 interim dividend pursuant to

the script dividend scheme announced by the

Company on 29 March 2017.

() On 27 December 2017, the Company issued
and allotted a total 13,108,791 ordinary shares
in the Company at HK$4.40 to shareholders
who elected to receive shares in the Company
in lieu of cash for the 2017 final dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme

announced by the Company on 1 December

2017.

(d) On 30 April 2018, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 6,813,739 ordinary shares in
the Company at HK$4.70 to shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu
of cash for 2018 interim dividend pursuant to

the script dividend scheme announced by the

Company on 6 April 2018.
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27 AR s (4E)

(A) B (%)
Hrat - (&)

2. ARRRER

(@ WBE-ZZFT-—RNFZA=+=
HELBBEHEER-E—X
FMARNBMBE  KXQA
2R e-_tEARESH
&5 2z & &% KR ER A&
—MAFREREZ(=ZF
—tFNARKEF]) - R
ZE-RFEOAZ=Z+=H"
ARQFIE 31714,148,19319
TE—LFNARKRER -
ZE—LEFHARKRER
MEFEBAATR T —XF
MAZ+=ZRAE=ZZF —+
FOAZ+—BURYER
EESR4.308 7T (] AE)
REROG Rt F
13,954,211 —FE—+F N
ARBEZITERE - NAQF]
B2 1713,954,2 11/ 1A% »
BT 21726630 E RN =%
—+EmMA-+—HRHE
e

27.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(A) Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2.

Bonus warrants

(a)

With reference to the Circular issued on 23
March 2016, and the announcement on 6
April 2016, the Board proposes the Bonus
Warrants Issue for the Qualifying Shareholders
on the basis of one Warrant for every thirty-
five existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“2017 April Warrants”). On 22
April 2016, the Company issued 14,148,193
units of 2017 April Warrants. The holders of
2017 April Warrants are entitled to subscribe at
any time during 22 April 2016 to 21 April 2017
for fully paid shares of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$4.30 per share (subject
to adjustment). In 2017, 13,954,211 new shares
were issued upon exercise of 13,954,211 units
of 2017 April Warrants. The remaining 172,663
were expired on 21 April 2017.
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27 AR s (4E)

(A) B (%)
Hrat - (&)

2. AFZRER(E)

by BE—ZT—tF A —H
EHBEER-_ZE—+tF A
AhB®MBEE  KARrAE#H
BERE_TERRERGZ
BEBKRRAIEE—HAF
REEDZ ([T — NFEX
ARBEFE]) RZT—+
FRNAZ+—H ARQAE
2£1719,676,09610 — & — )\
FERARKEE - — TN
FRNARBREZNFTA AR
R—ZZE—+&F<A=+—8
2T NFRAZ+—H
LA# 20 R EE(E T Bk4.407 7T
(ATAR) RERMD - FA
E1T$18,533,7111p (==
—+tF0p) - \FX
ARRERITEE  BE8IT
18,533,711 A% - B T~ 2
1,142,385 ER = — N\F
NAZ+—HRHER -

3. PRBMN LM RM 2Rz B
BT ES T EERARD M
AR o

4. RFERN XEBEARBZWNERF
BE  HEIBEOAQR B

27.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(A) Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2.

Bonus warrants (Continued)

(b)

With reference to the Circular issued on 1
June 2017, and the announcement on 9 May
2017, the Board proposes the Bonus Warrants
Issue for the Qualifying Shareholders on the
basis of one Bonus Warrant for every twenty-
seven existing shares of the Company held by
the shareholders (“2018 June Warrants”). On
21 June 2017, the Company issued 19,676,096
units of 2018 June Warrants. The holders of
2018 June Warrants are entitled to subscribe at
any time during 21 June 2017 to 21 June 2018
for fully paid shares of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$4.40 per share (subject
to adjustment). During the year, 18,533,711
(2017: zero) new shares were issued upon
exercise of 18,533,711 units of 2018 June
Warrants. The remaining 1,142,385 units were

expired on 21 June 2018.

All shares issued as mentioned in Note 1 to Note 2

above rank pari passu with the existing shares of the

Company in all respects.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year.
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(B) f#f&
YN

R-ZE—RF+H—H

RNEEEIR

REEEHEHWHEAE

EHEREN T RERARE
EHENREN —Z—LFHBERE

R-E—+tFA=1TBK
—E—+F+H—H

REEFER

AEEEHERARE

EHtEREN-ZF-—LFRARE
EHEREN=ZZ-NFHHRE

R-ZZE-N\EXA=1+H

RZEBE-N\FXRA=+H REFERQ
AHMEGIF6M 2 METE > AID KT A

AT 2 B EER97,429,00058 7T
(ZZ—+H 4 : 243,553,000/ 7T) °
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

27.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE

(Continued)

(B) Reserve

The Company

Balance at 1 July 2016

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2016 final dividend approved and paid
2017 interim dividend approved and paid

Balance at 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2017 final dividend approved and paid
2018 interim dividend approved and paid

Balance at 30 June 2018

REBRF,
CREE
Retained
profits/total

reserves
FET
HK$'000
336,754
(2,765)
(2,765)
(56,392)
(34,044)

243,553

(30,216)

213,337

(73,817)
(42,091)

97,429

At 30 June 2018, the aggregate amounts of reserves

available for distribution to equity shareholders of

the Company, as calculated under the provisions of

Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was

HK$97,429,000 (2017: HK$243,553,000).
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28.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

28. 2 A B 55k 0 ¥R

—E-N&E —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
kREBEE Non-current assets
(S ENEI Interests in subsidiaries 254,737 254,737
JE WY JB A B) R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 177,269 178,433
432,006 433,170
REBEE Current assets
RSN R ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,330,489 2,355,600
RITEFERERE S Bank balances and cash 151 96
2,330,640 2,355,696
REEE Current liabilities
H i A BRI Other payables 1,625 1,338
FET I B A RIZkIB Amounts due to subsidiaries 274,398 279,387
276,023 280,725
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,054,617 2,074,971
WEERRBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,486,623 2,508,141
FRBEME Non-current liabilities
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,883 9,674
EERR Advances from a director 158,042 204,896
167,925 214,570
EEFE Net assets 2,318,698 2,293,571
= EQUITY
A& 7 Share capital 2,221,269 2,050,018
& (T it27(B)) Reserves (Note 27(B)) 97,429 243,553
EmEE Total equity 2,318,698 2,293,571
jichug =] i
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
2 EFE
Director Director
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2.BEERAEANLT Z2ERRS

BRAMBHRREMBOREZR S,
BRON LTI ASREEBEEALR

FRETZERRS

XNFEEERASR
e BHERCHE
EMFFE13RA T
RAFEEWS -

e ME MR H
‘B & T
BB 12 12 A

MEMTHELZIEL

AT F R 3 SR
BRATR([CCALL) &
SRR CRPT)
AR A A ([CCDMLI)
AIAD & H Ath B3 & A

AN Tt R RE 5
BRARME

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

29.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following material

transactions with connected and related parties:

—EB-N\F —ET—LF
2018 2017
Mt FTERT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
Remuneration paid to key
management personnel,
including amounts paid to
the Company’s directors as
disclosed in Note 13:
Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 13,421 12,701
Post-employment benefits 90 90
13,511 12,791
Interest paid to Dr. Chao Sze
Tsung Cecil (@) 10,429 11,032
Architect and other
professional service fees
paid to Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited (“CCAL")
and Cecil Chao Design
(Macau) Limited (“CCDML") (b) 22,010 22,010
Commission paid to Szehope
Securities Company Limited (c) 19 27
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2. BEFEAEBEA LT ZE ARG (&) 29.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

Bet -

(a)

1 4 A AN £ [ R 4 A I % A
EEERBEZEF  RRITRAZER
EMM%stERE(ZT—+HF : 817
REFEIMI%)  c RZE—NFRA
=+H EEZEITLETAEER 2B
K A128,782,0008 0 (ZF — £ F ¢
175,636,000 7T) ° it L 1§ + 2 #
RITGERAEFEERELBREEN
SEBENEEEMEEARIL -

CCALKCCDMLIK 15 & 75 5T 7E 2 & 3K
REEZEREMEERBETAER -
& 185 + ACCALKRCCDMLZ B 2%
BB A  ZEXSER EMHRAET4A
EAECEERERS - EmHREA
FBUUAEZBRBEEREEEETEWMES
iR o

HitZHL R RESFERARZE
HEAA

BrIA B Rl oh - 0 S R B AT B
FARAMELETIREBNEEZR
2 wHRFEFHEGLH  MARAE
ENERBEALIRZERS  THX
BHPEEKEEREAEANEL -

(a)

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has provided unsecured
advances, which is repayable on demand, to the Group
at 1% over prime interest rate in Hong Kong per annum
(2017: 1% over prime interest rate in Hong Kong per
annum). At 30 June 2018, the advances from Dr. Chao
Sze Tsung Cecil amounted to HK$128,782,000 (2017:
HK$175,636,000). Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has
confirmed that he will not request repayment of these
advances until such time as the Group is in a position
to repay that will not affect the Group’s ability to repay

other creditors.

CCAL and CCDML rendered architectural and related
services to the Group on terms agreed between both
parties. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner
of CCAL and CCDML. These transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the

Reports of the directors.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of

Szehope Securities Company Limited.

Other than the above, no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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30.AREERHELANEENYHIR

31

METHELANAEBREBEEHAH
AT
“E—+FtH—-H 1)uly2017
Beng Cash-flows:

—EX — Repayment

— 15 — Proceeds

s
—BERRBFIEM

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

a related company

Non-cash:

FHRE
—ERTAIE

— Interest accruals

ZE-NEXA=1+H 30)une 2018

TREREERAABEEE

BR

AREEE - REBEFEFELKRERE

@TL?@%F&H‘IIEEQL%F&QH % 2
BiEmISE R (B2 ESMERRE - F

TJ_L o M EMERRR) - EERRK

MENE & @b o

ERME T A AR R RBE &
ﬁ%}’iﬁﬂ BT - EREEENR

Tt R IAERBE R MEAR
ﬁéd(iﬁﬂﬁﬁ °

31

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities can be classified as follows:

— Increase in advance from

ENES BERE FREER

BRMRA B R R A

BEREE Advances Advance Amounts
Interest- from amount from  due to non-
bearing due to a arelated  controlling
borrowings director company shareholders
TET TET TR TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,144,481 175,636 1,468 239,990
(627,748) (131,504) - -
687,813 84,650 - -
- _ (16) _

8,753 - - -
1,213,299 128,782 1,452 239,990

.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
operations and in its investment activities. The financial
risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and

liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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S1.2REMEERAAEBEEE 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
BER (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
S eREERABEER 31.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

WTHERzeRMEENSRABENU
FREEZINEM IR mET -

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the
following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities:

—E-NEFE —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
tRMEE Financial assets
ER KR ERERRK Loans and receivables:
g 5 & H b e AR Trade and other receivables 29,418 14,521
RITFERERE Bank balances and cash 724,022 913,706
WAREES AIEZ 2 Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss:
BIEEER EMES Listed equity securities held for
trading 7,128 15,143
REEEIIHKRE Held-to-maturity investments:
FEARERIN EHES Debentures listed outside Hong
Kong 2,408 18,126
At EemEE Available-for-sale financial
assets:
KA ESF Listed perpetual notes 128,933 114,629
EWES Listed debentures 36,788 -
928,697 1,076,125
oAy =N Financial liabilities
BREBEEEEEL Financial liabilities measured
TRBE: at amortised cost:
B pE 1T BR 3K Other payables 138,505 143,964
JE A< FE#58 AR IR ER SRR Amount due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 239,990
FET A& R RIFRIE Amount due to a related
company 1,452 1,468
EBEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,213,299 1,144,481
EERNR Advances from a director 128,782 175,636
1,722,028 1,705,539
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B1.2 M EMEERAABHEEE 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
3125 ERAME 31.2 Credit risk

Fs

m

EERRIEERTANS -/
AARBEETERIA FMERREH
REBREZMB LOEKL - N&E
MARRREHEERBREZRBE
BRERTEFIREEEGNE
KRR - T2REHEFPZ2ES
WA e

T

RITEFEMNASBEFREESE
EFfzemBBEmARERAR
ARAEERRIELTEX -

REMFPZEEEA BEEEDRH
BUHEBEEERRELEREER
@ o AFAAEBROM AR ER
Be MEARERE—FHEE®R
~HE R 5 R Kz AT UK B 5 58 A B
RELTBE T SR A B MRERE
B o

AREBEARREESEET ZE
ERERE - SAZEERBREIERS
EeMBEEZKRAE  ~AREHE
REEFMEMERSAEEREE
[ELFg2

AEEEHFECRBEABEER
BRERE  TRREBRERAE
ERBENEERRNIEZE -

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from the bank balances and cash and trade and
other receivables, primarily rents receivable from

tenants.

Bank balances and cash are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit rating
and the Group considers the credit risk to be

insignificant.

For rent receivables from tenants, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.
Rental deposits are required from tenants prior
to the commencement of leases. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group have no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and tenants. Hence, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amounts of each class of financial assets.
The Group does not provide any other guarantees

which would expose the Group to credit risk.

The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the

Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.
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J1.eWEMEERAAEBEEE
B (48)
I3 RBESER

MEERR IR AN R BRREEBITH
A BENEENER - AEEE
HnsltEe T 2REEEETY
BEEMEBHERSRENEIE
AREERANRREHMRERREXTE
HenBESHTE  Massg—2
EEEgzReRERENA B FTK
o AFERASRE LA RBIHER &
MRS REELRTESRHEENEE
NAZAHEE  UHEEHEE

HOWESHE -

AEEBHFRECREAEARDE
THER IRF/ECAUEERTE

LA
& R bR o

REBEBRARRANR -_FE—N\FR_
E—+tFARA=THHRTHERD
A BB ERARMIRNIR SR
E(BREREBEAQTENRAERN
BX sk - HRFR - BIRERE
HERTHR) R Z o -
EERARNEZRREEMNRERE
17T ZBEEARENMARRRSR
BXAEESIR - BEREAD B
ANET BE-EFXHROEEAR
SERARAREFENZBH -

31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
31.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants by reviewing each operating
entity’s cash flow forecast, to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have

been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as
at 30 June 2018 and 2017, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date). When the creditor
has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date
on when the Group can be required to pay. Where
the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in

which the Group is committed to pay.
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At 30 June 2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payables

Amount due to non-controlling
shareholders

Amount due to a related company

Interest-bearing borrowings

Advances from a director

At30 June 2017

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payables

Amount due to non-controlling
shareholders

Amount due to a related company

Interest-bearing borrowings

Advances from a director

1. emEKREERAABEEE 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
31.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group
HEIH-RERRSRA
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
SR-%  SRWE
R-FRg  EIRWE EIREE RERRE
HEER  Morethan  More than ittt
REE Within ~ Tyearhut 2vyearshut ~ SREF Total
Carrying 1 yearor less than less than ~ More than  undiscounted
amount  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash outflows
TEL TR TR TERL TR TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
138,505 138,645 - - - 138,645
239990 239,990 . . - 23999
1452 1452 . . . 1452
1213299 1,220,442 525 12,075 - 1,233,002
128,782 136,508 . . - 136508
172,08 1,737,037 525 12,075 - 1,749,637
143,964 140,951 4110 - - 145,061
239,990 239,990 - - - 239,990
1,468 1,468 - - - 1,468
1,144,481 1,154,161 789,086 1,575 11,025 1,955,847
175,036 186,175 - - - 186,175
1705539 1,722,745 793,196 1,575 11,025 2,528,541
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1. emEREERAAEBEEE
HE (&)
31.4 R R @A K

MEERIEVHTAZ AR EERK
BEREGHEE TSN L E M E
BzRAR - BRIRBERNRITET
Hh REBRARBAEBERE R
BEEE-

AREEZNERREBERERITE
FERELRBEEMEE  EREER
TTERRESZRR - RTBAY
AR At AEBEEYRSRE
MEER - RIBFLIBER LA BE
EGR - ERBREENENES

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘

7N 5 8] 3 B {55 R 58 H ) = 5 rp ) R
JELFg2

AEEBHFRECRBEABEIEI
EE ol i O BRSR - AR B AR

WZZE—NFXA=+H  BHF
KRG LR T#E508F - BEEHMEA
ETE  gRd EMAEE R
i 1& 2 F) & AR B & ) £92,539,000
BT (ZE—1F : 491,698,000/
TL) o 50T EH THRAE
BESEEZ T —EARSANE2HE
B2 5l o

31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.4 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Except
for bank balances, the Group has no significant

interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank balances and cash and interest-bearing
borrowings which includes bank loans and
advances from a director. These arrangements
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. In accordance with the terms
of the interest-bearing borrowings, the interest
rate will be adjusted should the Hong Kong dollar
prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate be
changed.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to

hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are

considered to be effective.

At 30 June 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit
after income tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$2,539,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,698,000). The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over

the period until the next annual reporting date.
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S1.2MERBRETERAABHEERE 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.5 SMEE & B 31.5 Foreign currency risk

SMERBIEFBTAZ AR EESK
R T 8 & BE & HMEE =R
mESER - AREXTEREE
A BRAZRFTE - KEBHR
HZEIBER /BT (AT 5
RATEMFR (HEF]) AR
BIARE] - INERBREREREB
AREER G ERIENREEEE
ERBENKR ANRERSINE
REEEHREET  AKEALES
BRI ST T A SR INE AR -

AEEBHFRECRBEABEIEIN
PERER AR - WRAE R -

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group operates mainly
in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"”), Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) or
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
Group considers its foreign currency exposure is
mainly arising from the exposure of United States
dollars (“US$”). The Group has not entered into
any derivative instruments to hedge the foreign

exchange exposures.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and

are considered to be effective.
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S1.eRMEREERAABEEE

B (48)
31.5 SNER K (48)

AT RAREERHRE HATELER A
BEEEE LN &
Wit AmREENMARGEMRMES

HEEAEEND

B SME LB

R-ZE—-N\EXB=1+H
RITFREIRE

% [ H R % R

R-ZE—tFRHA=+H
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31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table details of the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to foreign exchange risk

arising from recognised assets and liabilities

denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entity to which they

relate are shown below:

At 30 June 2018

Bank balances and cash

Overall net exposure

At 30 June 2017

Bank balances and cash

Overall net exposure

remote.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%E) AR28 | Annual Report 2018 £

Epn
Us$
FET
HK$’000

2,960

2,960

3,849

3,849

Since US$ is pegged to HK$, material fluctuations
in the exchange rates of US$ against HK$ are



o & B SR R B R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

J1.eWEMEERAAEBEEE

HE (E)

31.6 HfbEE R
HEMERRRIEVIFETAZARE
B ARIBSRESTHEETIHEIR
(F) =G H) 2 HNE Z BBRIN) 2
FEIMER c AEBEEEME £
R ARFEHFN TS ERES  ZF L
TRANEE DB AIE AR EER
ANEmz emMBEERBEBRESFDE
ARBEEENEMNERES LA H
HEMNEMEE - EEETELE
MBS BEERFELEENTT
@Jo

AEEERTRERMARNE R
fo (B AE ELBR OB A RRE AR
2 -

EELEBEREMNIOON(ZZ—+
F10%) BREHHAEEARF

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
31.6 Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities classified as held-to-maturity
debt securities and available-for-sale financial
assets. The management will monitor the price
movements and take appropriate actions when it is
required.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

A hypothetical 10% (2017: 10%) change in prices
of trading investments would result in an effect to

CEBTENT the Group’s result for the year as follows:
—E—N\F T+ F
2018 2017
FTHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
KEHRBIEEE Increase in profit for the year as
B EAHAREF a result of increase in price of
=Rl ppill investments held for trading
and other financial assets 713 151
KREFBIFER Decrease in profit for the year
B TR ARF as a result decrease in price of
2 A investments held for trading
and other financial assets (713) (151)
AIHHESRMEEEN Increase in other comprehensive
EAYARFEEMEE  income for the year as a result of
W 5 42 N increase in price of available-for-
sale financial assets 16,572 11,463
A ESREEEM Decrease in other comprehensive
TREHAFEMEE income for the year as a result of
Wz R A decrease in price of available-for-
sale financial assets (16,572) (11,463)
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31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2, inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%E) AR28 | Annual Report 2018 £



1. emEREERAAEBEEE

BER (&)

3T RREMBRRERPEAZAAE

& (&)
R EIRRBR PR AR
TREERBERAAE

m -

R=ZZFB-NFXA=+H

HEFEENEMES

AfhENEREE

HEFEENEMES

AHEENSREE

GEMBHRETMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value in the statement of financial position are

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

At 30 June 2018

Assets

Listed equity securities
held for trading

Available-for-sale

financial assets

At 30 June 2017

Assets

Listed equity securities
held for trading

Available-for-sale

financial assets

k23
Note

k23
Note

F=/F B 4ot
Level 1 Level 2 Total
FHExT THT THxT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,128 - 7,128

- 165,721 165,721

7,128 165,721 172,849
£-F $-F st
Level 1 Level 2 Total
FAET FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
15,143 - 15,143
114,629 114,629
15,143 114,629 129,772
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31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

There have been no transfers between levels 1, 2

and 3 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.

Note

(a) Listed equity securities
The listed equity securities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting
date.

(b) Listed debt securities
The listed debt securities are denominated in United
States dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting
date.

31.8 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair value as at 30
June 2018.
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EXEHE
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BEEEHIARBREAMESIHE
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BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

32.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings and advances from
a director as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less bank balances and cash. Total
capital is equity as shown in the consolidated statement

of financial position.
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32.ERERE (&) 32.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

FA - AEEZKE BT NFRE During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was

HHAES  BEHBEEAGBHLERTR unchanged since 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio

B50% @ —E—NFER_ZE—+FNA of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June
=tHZEERGELXRMT : 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

—E-NF —F—+tF

FET FET

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,213,299 1,144,481

EERR Advances from a director 128,782 175,636

& RARHR Total borrowings 1,342,081 1,320,117

B RIT FERNMIR S Less: bank balances and cash (724,022) (913,706)

BEFHE Net debt 618,059 406,411

wE N () Total capital (Note) 6,380,201 5,608,464

EERBHLE Gearing ratio 9.69 % 7.25%

Wiet - RERBEMBEARARARFRE Note: Total capital includes all capital and reserves

NG - attributable to owners of the Company.
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33. & E 33.COMMITMENTS
(@) EXRFEIE (a) Capital commitments

R¥E BN ERTYEZ EAE
P& RN 51 & TR I R B 75 #R & P

Capital commitments in respect of properties

under development outstanding at the reporting

B date not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:
—2-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$000
EHEBRER Contracted but not provided for 377,793 373,948
(b) BEHE-HHBEEA (b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

REER  AEERBEEVEEDS
BERUB Z AT - RIRWELZ &K
TH& EUGRAERRI T

At the reporting date, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the

Group’s properties as follows:

—E-N\F —TE—LF

2018 2017

FTHET TATT

HK$’000 HK$000

—F R Within one year 24,761 21,460
F_EFRFN In the second to fifth years

(BEEEMF) inclusive 8,348 4,131

33,109 25,591
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33.7KIE (&)
(b) ERE-HHESE A E)

(0

AEBREESEHELRHFHARE
BEWE (MaE14)  NFERH—=
B REHESRAEEERGRE
HPEETHE R EREEE -
ZEMEMNGRR —RITERER
XfiRES - HEYEBFEXEM

A
Sl

EEMEE-RAEBEA

R¥mER » AEERE LM LETF
ZTRERUBEZHAOT » REZHZ
REMESMH@ROT

33. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

(©)

(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
14) under operating lease arrangements which
run for initial periods of one to five years, with an
option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

At the reporting date, the total future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect

of buildings are as follows:

—E-N\F —ET—LF

2018 2017

FER TATT

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 2,993 3,458
F_EFERF In the second to fifth years

inclusive 6,410 1,290

9,403 4,748

AEERBELEHEHAYE - H
EVSRE=%F RIHPEIASE
EHEXAEXIE S HENBHA
EBREEN B GR - HELE
BREIAEREE -

The Group leases properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of 3 years, with
an option to renew the lease and renegotiate the
terms at the expiry date or at dates as mutually
agreed between the Group and respective
landlords. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.
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MBRERRE L

B H T E THB QAR B R
3,196,124,0008 7T (=T — £ F :
2,217,107,000/ 7T) IR1TEL & * "R
AIEMRITIERARIER - RZT—N\F
NA=+H hHERMEE TERZH
%/51,184,500,000/8 70 (=T —+4F :
1,142,702,000/7T) - R¥EH - EF
REBZRAFEMBEREHNTZ
BEELEE -  ATAIERIRTEEER
FER - WEERZARBELESER

go

BEEEH

RmER  AEBETIEEIRZ 42
R1TE E /A1,184,500,0008 L (=&
—+t 4 :1,134,807,000% 7T) :

(i) AEBEWETREDE FHED
¥ THREF RAREBMETA
BEmzemEERYBRIFAE
HEEEMEE  AREES A
2,076,830,0008 0 (=& — L4 :
2,714,974,000% 7T) (MfsE14) »
08T (ZZF—+4F : 424,797,000
wBor) (KsE19) ~ 34,170,000/ 7T

— T — % 127,324,000/ L)
(Ft3E15) ROBT (ZF —H5F -
8,279,000/ 7T) (M sF20) B HE #
THRTT

(i) ATHBARMAEEENMEGHER
M

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

34.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS OF

35.

THE COMPANY

The Company has executed corporate guarantees to
banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries to the extent of HK$3,196,124,000 (2017:
HK$2,217,107,000) of which HK$1,184,500,000
(2017: HK$1,142,702,000) was utilised as at 30 June
2018. At the reporting date, no provision for the
Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts
have been made as the directors considered that it was
not probable that the repayment of the loans by the
subsidiaries would be in default. The fair value of these

guarantees was immaterial.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the reporting date, the Group’s total bank borrowings
of HK$1,184,500,000 (2017: HK$1,134,807,000) were

secured by the following:

(i) legal charges on certain of the Group’s investment
properties, properties held for sales, land and
building and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with carrying values of
HK$2,076,830,000 (2017: HK$2,714,974,000)
(Note 14), HK$Nil (2017: HK$424,797,000) (Note
19), HK$34,170,000 (2017: HK$27,324,000) (Note
15) and HK$Nil (2017: HK$8,279,000) (Note 20)

respectively;

(ii) floating charge over all the assets and undertakings

of certain subsidiaries;
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5. 5 (F) 35.PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

(iii) SRIT41FERM(E9,997,000/8 T (= (iii) charge over certain bank account balances
T —+4F : 4,677,000 7T) O VEE with carrying values of HK$9,997,000 (2017:
(M 7E22) - HK$4,677,000) (Note 22);

(iv) ETHEB AR Z KK EER TIRT (iv) mortgages over the shares of certain subsidiaries
(PfF5E18) (Note 18);

(v) &ETWEHLER - Rl - (v) assignments of sale proceeds, insurance proceeds,
e WA KA LM REIRE rental income and deposits arising from the tenancy
54 agreements of certain properties; and

i) FEEZIHAIRE2,408,000 (vi) held-to-maturity investments of HK$2,408,000
BT (ZF—+%F :18,126,000 (2017: HK$18,126,000) and available-for-
ABo) MAIHEEN SR E E sale financial assets of HK$165,721,000 (2017:
165,721,000/8 7T (=T — L F - HK$114,629,000) (Note 17).

114,629,000/ 1) (MfzE17) o
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CERYE

R-ZE—-N\FXRA=1H

nE

Property

BEMANELEE
2EH (H17)
Scenic Crest

Mui Wo

Lantau Island

New Territories

Hong Kong (Portion)

BBBBT A EELOR
BRTE(37)

South View Garden

80 Shek Pai Wan Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

(Portion)

BB % MiE200%

#78 (31)

Villa Cecil 200 Victoria
Road, Hong Kong (Portion)

BA B E30%
el (F17)

Cheuk Nang Lookout,

30 Severn Road, The Peak,
Hong Kong (Portion)

w8

Lot no.

4871638

716inD D. 4

8184, 185, 186, 187,
188, 189, 1901915
AL 184,185, 186,187,
188, 189, 190 &191

R £ 833857BE
REEE R

Sec. B of I.L. 8338 & Ext.
M RENIE10675

R.B.L. 1067

COMPLETED PROPERTIES
As at 30 June 2018

WREH

Government

lease term
(%)

(years)

FHH1992F 1
1555
55 from 1992

18885 £51999F

999 from 1888

1925t
TSEETSE
75 + 75 from 1922

M1992F B 555F

55 from 1992

Eopil

Type

A%/ %

Commercial /

Residential

A%/ %

Commercial /

Residential

Residential

B#E
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FFR)
(s.f)

3,892

3,892

6,083

6,683

LS
BRERR
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(FFR)
(s.f)

3,903

3,903

12,500

12,500

Schedule of Major Properties

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Car parking

spaces

Fris &
RS

% owned

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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B & B3 (

)

R-ZE—-N\FXRA=1H

nx

Property

BB TEI92%
#H=8

F— ZRZE(HH)
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3,

Villa Cecil, Phase II,
192 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong (Portion)

BRESHEN6H

ER-HE-ERE_E

Tower 1 and 2,

Villa Cecil, Phase Ill,
216 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong

REAE
SRAZTERD

EEX%502508 & (517)

Parkview
Lorong Perak
50250 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia (Portion)

SRR

AYEEEER (3)

Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Longgang,

Shenzhen (Portion)

&

Lot no.

i 2441

L.L. 2441

AR E M ER215%,
REEZH
R.B.L. 215 & Ext from

F13595 R
(RITBPT77308) » E578

Section 57, Lot 1359
(formerly Lot PT77),
Section 57

RHIHA819-0128

Lot No A819-0128

COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
As at 30 June 2018

BREH

Government

lease term
(F)

(years)

H1923E 5t
TSEETSE

75 + 75 from 1923

H1922F 5t

75EE75F

75 + 75 from 1922

IAFHE

Freehold

F2004F #70E

70 from 2004

il

Type

Residential

Residential

Residential

BE/EE

Commercial /

Residential
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B#E
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FER)
(s.f)

35,382

35,382

73,293

73,293

27,236

27,236

1,227,097

1,227,097

LS
BREER
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(FAR)
(s.f)

47,689

47,689

97,000

97,000

Car parking

spaces

20

20

21

21

1,054

1,054

Firf &
RS

% owned



BRPU=E
R-F—\FXA=1H

hE B4 BREH  HARE
Government
Property Lot no. lease term Type*
(%)
(years)
AR Y LB 1991 £z
ERZETA 0%
ELEl
One Kowloon Peak ~ Tsuen Wan Town 56 from 1991 Residential
§ PoFung Terrace, Lot 352
Ting Kau, Tsuen Wan
Cecil Central Residence 113853113863 KAEE BE/RE
FREE HEETR
ERATERR
50508 E
Cecil Central Section 57, Freehold - Commerciall
Residence Lorong Lot 11385 and 11386 Residential
Perak 50250,
Kuala Lumpur Malaysia
RPBEREE  20%HE ENNERI0E ER/0%
Estrada de Lot No 21202 10from 2011 Commercial/
Seac Pai Van Residential

Schedule of Major Properties

BEZFT—/\F,xB=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
As at 30 June 2018

hESER

Site area
(¥7%)
59

39,998

39,998

86,638

86,038

97,597
97,597

Bik
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FAR)
(s

83,991

83,991

]
1,708,648

Phase 2
1,708,048

1,676,000
1,676,000

g fih s
LEAER Efi g2
Total

B¢

markeable Car
4r0ss parking
floor area spaces % owned
(F5R)
3
113,368 70 100
113,360 70 100
- 867 100
- 867 100
- 1,031 7169
- 1,031 71.69

BHIR
RHAY

Stage of
compleion
date

2019

20

9

Not yet
(etermined

BRE
Not yet
determined

WE-tE
~AZTH
BIfR

Development
asat 30/6/2017

Atotal of 14 units of

Phase T were sold

The superstructure work of
Phase 2 has been

completed pending for
issuance of Occupation Permit

FEACERALE

New plans are
approved by the
Govt authorities

FiaahneRtER
Application for new land
lease has been submitted.
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HRPY=EE)

R-ZE—N\FRA=TH

0% 18 B354

Government

Property Lot no. lease term

(%)

(years)

FRARRENKL  RMTEADMR  moorFEss0s

F1040% 7

New Villa Cecil Shui Lot No. 1648 50 from 2007

Hang, Cheung Chau, ~ D.D. Cheung Chau
Hong Kong

o AR SEES % - 20095

i HRLERA  ABREHOE

R

AR EHE

Cheuk Nang * Riverside  Chong Xian Zhen North ~ Residential

Yu Hang District of Chong Hang Jie West 70 years from

Hangzhou of Yan Shan Gang 25/12/2009

Commercial

40 years from

251202009

LB

Type*

Residential

Residential/
Commercial

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(Continued)
As at 30 June 2018

BHE 1&

HBAER ALEER AREER
Total Total

approved  marketable

gross gr0ss

Stearea  floorarea floor area
(FAR)  (FAR)  (¥AR)
(] ) (]

111,752 40,683 56,000

111,752 40,663 56,000

350,847 1,096,561 -

350,847 1,096,561 -
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B

Car
parking
spaces

778

778

i

% owned

R-%-tF
it 1R ARZTH
RRAS BIfR
Stage of

completion Development
date asat 30/6/2017

my  E-RARERRL
FEIETE
ExREFETERS
2019 The Occupation Permit of
Phase | was issued.

The superstructure of Phase Il

has been completed pending

for inspection by

Fire Services Department

2019 TEERR
BREESMERY
33351

2019 The construction
is completed. Inspection by
the Government authorties

is in progress
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